

# House Calendar

---

FRIDAY, APRIL 17, 2009

101st DAY OF BIENNIAL SESSION

House Convenes at 9:30 A. M.

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

---

	Page No.
<b>ACTION CALENDAR</b>	
<b>Action Postponed Until Friday, April 17, 2009</b>	
<b>Senate Proposal of Amendment</b>	
<b>H. 204</b> Payment of Diversion Program Fees.....	1521
<b>Third Reading</b>	
<b>H. 171</b> Home Mortgage Protection for Vermonters.....	1521
<b>H. 313</b> Relating to Near-term and Long-term Economic Development. 1521	
Rep. Donovan et al Amendment	
Rep. Ram Amendment.....	1522
Rep. Komline Amendment .....	1524
<b>H. 444</b> Relating to Health Care Reform.....	1525
<b>Favorable with Amendment</b>	
<b>H. 297</b> Approval of Charter of Morristown Corners Water Corp.....	1525
Rep. Martin for Government Operations	
<b>Report Committee of Conference</b>	
<b>H. 232</b> Relating to Fiscal Year 2009 Budget Adjustment.....	1525
<b>For Action Under Rule 52</b>	
<b>J.R.H. 22</b> Honoring Municipal Public Works Employees.....	1577
<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>	
(See Addendum to House and Senate Calendar)	
<b>H.C.R. 103</b> Congratulating Chelsea HS Girls' Basketball Team .....	1577
<b>H.C.R. 104</b> Congratulating Spaulding HS Girls' Basketball Team.....	1577
<b>H.C.R. 105</b> Congratulating Spaulding HS Students TA Athletes of Year.....	1577
<b>H.C.R. 106</b> Honoring Spaulding HS Wrestling Coach William Young..	1578
<b>H.C.R. 107</b> In Memory of George Gibby of Topsham.....	1578

<b>H.C.R. 108</b>	Praising Bravery of Alabama Capt. Richard Phillips .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 109</b>	Welcoming Commission on Alzheimer’s Disease .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 110</b>	Congratulating Champlain Valley UHS Field Hockey Team.....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 111</b>	Congratulating UVM Lady Catamounts Basketball Team...	1578
<b>H.C.R. 112</b>	Honor Libraries, Librarians & Workers Nat’l Library Week.....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 113</b>	Congratulating Winners of Iron Chef Competition .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 114</b>	In Memory of Mark Bennett of Brattleboro .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 115</b>	Honoring the Granges of Vermont .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 116</b>	Congratulating South Burlington Tree City U S A .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 117</b>	Honoring George Buzzell Orleans Cty State Forester.....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 118</b>	Congratulating UVM Catamount Skiers .....	1578
<b>H.C.R. 119</b>	Congratulating Champlain VUHS Boys’ Hockey Team .....	1578
<b>S.C.R. 19</b>	Honoring Joanie Binns, Manager Quimby Resort .....	1578
<b>S.C.R. 20</b>	Expressing Appreciation to Buildings & Grounds Services ..	1579
<b>S.C.R. 21</b>	Honoring the Court Diversion Program 30th Anniversary ....	1579

---

---

ORDERS OF THE DAY

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**Action Postponed Until Friday, April 17, 2009**

**Senate Proposal of Amendment**

**H. 204**

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: By adding a Sec. 3 to read as follows:

**Sec. 3. REPORT**

The attorney general shall report to the senate and house committees on judiciary no later than January 15, 2011 on the impact of Sec. 1 and Sec. 2 of this act on the state's court diversion programs, including the impact on the number of people successfully completing diversion programs.

Second: By adding a Sec. 4 to read as follows:

**Sec. 4. SUNSET**

Sec. 1 of this act (juvenile court diversion project) and Sec. 2 of this act (adult court diversion project) shall be repealed on July 1, 2011.

**(No House amendments.)**

**Third Reading**

**H. 171**

An act relating to home mortgage protection for Vermonters.

**H. 313**

An act relating to near-term and long-term economic development.

**Amendment to be offered by Reps. Donovan of Burlington, Wizowaty of Burlington, Haas of Rochester Myers of Essex, Pellett of Chester, Lorber of Burlington, Ancel of Calais, Branagan of Georgia, Burke of Brattleboro, Cheney of Norwich, Clarkson of Woodstock, Copeland-Hanzas of Bradford, Courcelle of Rutland City, Davis of Washington, Donahue of Northfield, Edwards of Brattleboro, Emmons of Springfield, Evans of Essex, French of Randolph, Grad of Moretown, Head of South Burlington, Heath of Westford, Hooper of Montpelier, Johnson of South Hero, Keenan of St. Albans City, Lanpher of Vergennes, Lenes of Shelburne, Leriche of Hardwick, Manwaring of Wilmington, Martin of**

**Springfield, Martin of Wolcott, Milkey of Brattleboro, Miller of Shaftsbury, Minter of Waterbury, Mook of Bennington, Nuovo of Middlebury, O'Brien of Richmond, Partridge of Windham, Pugh of South Burlington, Ram of Burlington, Smith of Mendon, Spengler of Colchester, Sweaney of Windsor, Taylor of Barre City, Toll of Danville, Waite-Simpson of Essex, Webb of Shelburne and Weston of Burlington to H. 313**

Move to amend the bill by adding a new Sec. 2a as follows:

Sec. 2a. ARRA FUNDS; ECONOMIC SECURITY FOR WOMEN

(a) While all Vermonters are suffering from the current economic downturn, research indicates that women and female-headed households are likely to bear a disproportionate share of the hardship. As a result of longstanding discrimination and economic disadvantage, they often have fewer personal assets to sustain them through periods of unemployment, and they tend to feel cutbacks in traditional, public safety-net programs more acutely than men do, particularly in times of economic crisis. The general assembly, therefore, urges that the recession's disparate impact on women and children be taken into consideration in the awarding of federal funds under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub.L. 111-5.

(b) The director of the office of economic stimulus and recovery shall report the number of new jobs created for women and the number of grants awarded to agencies and organizations primarily serving women or women and children to the general assembly on or before January 15, 2010, and at six-month intervals thereafter, until all ARRA funds are disbursed.

**Amendment to be offered by Rep. Ram of Burlington to H. 313**

moves that the bill as amended by the committee on commerce and economic development be further amended by striking Sec. 8 in its entirety and by inserting a new Sec. 8 to read as follows:

\* \* \* Vermont Green Job Creation \* \* \*

Sec. 8. GREEN WORKFORCE COLLABORATIVE; STIMULUS MONIES

(a) The workforce development council and the commissioner of labor shall convene a green workforce collaborative as a committee of the council. The purpose of the collaborative is to promote career training and employment opportunities for Vermonters in green industry sectors; maximize the state's use of federal funds under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), Pub.L. No. 111-5; enhance the economic and environmental vitality of the state; and give priority to programs that provide education, training, and other services to target populations of eligible individuals.

(b) Members of the collaborative shall include the career and technical education coordinator within the department of education, as well as representatives of the various workforce training programs within the departments of economic development and of labor, as appropriate, the Vermont Energy Investment Corporation, representatives from Vermont Technical College and other Vermont educational institutions, and representatives of any other programs or entities pursuing green workforce development in Vermont, as deemed appropriate by the commissioner of labor.

(c) For purposes of this section,

(1) “Green industry sectors” shall include:

(A) The energy-efficient building, construction, and retrofits industries.

(B) The renewable electric power industry.

(C) The energy-efficient and advanced drive train vehicle industry, including performance and low-emission vehicle technology, automotive computer systems, mass transit fleet conversion, and the servicing and maintenance of those technologies.

(D) The biofuels industry.

(E) The deconstruction and materials use and re-use industries.

(F) The energy-efficiency assessment industry serving the residential, commercial, or industrial sectors.

(G) Manufacturers that produce sustainable products using environmentally sustainable processes and materials.

(H) Pollution prevention and hazardous and solid waste reduction.

(I) Soil or water conservation, or forestation strategies to mitigate climate change impacts.

(J) Any other sector deemed appropriate by the green workforce collaborative.

(2) “Target populations” shall include:

(A) Workers impacted by national energy and environmental policy.

(B) Individuals in need of updated training related to the energy efficiency and renewable energy industries.

(C) Veterans, or past and present members of reserve components of the Armed Forces.

(D) Unemployed individuals.

(E) Individuals, including at-risk youth, seeking employment pathways out of poverty and into economic self-sufficiency.

(F) Formerly incarcerated, adjudicated, nonviolent offenders.

(G) Any other populations specifically referenced in Title VIII of ARRA as enacted or as amended subsequent to passage of this act.

(d) In promoting education and training in green industry sectors, the collaborative shall seek to capitalize on existing infrastructure wherever appropriate, including the Center for Sustainable Practices at Vermont Technical College, the Vermont State Colleges, the University of Vermont, the regional technical centers, and the comprehensive high schools.

(e) Funding of programs designed to promote a green workforce in Vermont is a legislative priority with respect to appropriations of unencumbered federal monies available through the state fiscal stabilization fund under § 14002(a) of Title XIV of Division A of ARRA.

(f) The commissioner of labor shall collaborate with the director of the office of economic stimulus and recovery to secure competitive grants available under Titles IV and VIII of ARRA, and shall further pursue other state or federal workforce training funds available through the Vermont departments of education and of labor, and through the Vermont Energy Investment Corporation.

(g) On June 1, 2009 and again on January 15, 2010, the commissioner of labor shall provide the house committee on commerce and economic development, the senate committee on economic development, housing, and general affairs, and the senate and house committees on natural resources and energy a report detailing a status and needs assessment of green workforce development in Vermont pursuant to this section.

**Amendment to be offered by Rep. Komline of Dorset to H. 313**

Moves the bill as amended be further amended as follows:

In Sec. 3, 10 V.S.A. § 3(c), by adding a new subdivision (3) to read as follows:

(3) Each bill introduced for consideration by the general assembly shall be accompanied by an economic impact assessment prepared by the joint fiscal office that states whether the bill will have a positive, negative, or neutral economic impact on private enterprise in Vermont.

**H. 444**

An act relating to health care reform.

**Favorable with Amendment**

**H. 297**

An act relating to approval of the adoption of the charter of the Morristown Corners Water Corporation.

**Rep. Martin of Wolcott**, for the Committee on **Government Operations**, recommends the bill be amended as follows:

In Sec. 2, 24 V.S.A. App. § 701-5(a), in the third sentence, after “majority vote” and before “concerning”, by inserting “of the entire board”

**(Committee vote: 8-2-1)**

**Report Committee of Conference**

**H. 232**

An act relating to fiscal year 2009 budget adjustment.

**TO THE SENATE AND HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES:**

The Committee of Conference to which were referred the disagreeing votes of the two Houses upon House Bill entitled:

**H. 232.** An act relating to fiscal year 2009 budget adjustment.

Respectfully reports that it has met and considered the same and recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. Sec. 2.001 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.001. Secretary of administration - secretary’s office

Personal services	848,494	803,917
Operating expenses	59,918	59,918
Grants	<u>150,000</u>	<u>150,000</u>
Total	<del>1,058,412</del>	1,013,835
Source of funds		
General fund	829,122	872,208
Global Commitment fund	76,613	70,316
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>152,677</u>	<u>71,311</u>
Total	<del>1,058,412</del>	1,013,835

Sec. 2. Sec. 2.024 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.024. Buildings and general services - fee for space

Personal services	<del>11,993,881</del>	12,332,498
Operating expenses	<del>12,126,545</del>	13,854,846
Total	<del>24,120,426</del>	26,187,344
Source of funds		
Internal service funds	24,120,426	26,187,344

Sec. 3. Sec. 2.027 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.027. Executive office - national and community service

Personal services	<del>202,006</del>	151,504
Operating expenses	<del>122,923</del>	92,378
Grants	<del>1,835,463</del>	1,377,300
Total	<del>2,160,392</del>	1,621,182
Source of funds		
General fund	56,528	43,284
Federal funds	<del>2,103,864</del>	1,577,898
Total	<del>2,160,392</del>	1,621,182

Sec. 4. Sec. 2.034 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.034. Auditor of accounts

Personal services	<del>2,805,929</del>	2,785,632
Operating expenses	<del>142,283</del>	142,283
Total	<del>2,948,212</del>	2,927,915
Source of funds		
General fund	526,254	526,254
Special funds	54,431	54,431
Internal service funds	<del>2,367,527</del>	2,347,230
Total	<del>2,948,212</del>	2,927,915

Sec. 5. Sec. 2.040 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.040. VOSHA review board

Personal services	40,414	40,414
Operating expenses	<del>9,680</del>	9,680
Total	50,094	50,094
Source of funds		
General fund	25,047	25,047
<del>Federal funds</del>	<del>25,047</del>	
<u>Interdepartmental transfer</u>		25,047
Total	50,094	50,094

Sec. 6. Sec. 2.043 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.043. Tax department - reappraisal and listing payments

Grants	3,240,112	3,250,112
Source of funds		
Education fund	3,240,112	3,250,112

Sec. 7. Sec. 2.049 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.049. Total general government	177,473,806	178,946,640
Source of funds		
General fund	70,712,700	70,742,542
Education fund	8,809,208	8,819,208
Special funds	8,436,938	8,436,938
Tobacco fund	58,000	58,000
Global Commitment fund	416,113	409,816
Federal funds	2,952,640	2,401,627
Enterprise funds	2,762,854	2,762,854
Internal service funds	49,185,637	51,232,258
Pension trust funds	29,204,037	29,204,037
Private purpose trust funds	1,018,536	1,018,536
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>3,917,143</u>	<u>3,860,824</u>
Total	177,473,806	178,946,640

Sec. 8. Sec 2.101 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.101. Attorney general

Personal services	7,245,495	7,315,495
Operating expenses	<u>1,066,918</u>	<u>1,066,918</u>
Total	8,312,413	8,382,413
Source of funds		
General fund	4,594,248	4,594,248
Special funds	1,295,235	1,295,235
Tobacco fund	<u>290,000</u>	360,000
Federal funds	643,000	643,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>1,489,930</u>	<u>1,489,930</u>
Total	8,312,413	8,382,413

Sec. 9. Sec. 2.110 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.110. Public safety - state police

Personal services	38,966,689	42,378,789
Operating expenses	8,200,082	7,190,140
Grants	<u>582,087</u>	<u>582,087</u>
Total	47,748,858	50,151,016
Source of funds		
General fund	42,281,795	14,681,216

Transportation fund	28,231,384	28,231,384
Special funds	<del>2,073,265</del>	2,076,002
Federal funds	2,777,985	2,777,985
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>2,384,429</u>	<u>2,384,429</u>
Total	<del>47,748,858</del>	50,151,016

Sec. 10. Sec. 2.111 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.111. Public safety - criminal justice services

Personal services	<del>5,708,438</del>	6,008,538
Operating expenses	3,129,222	3,129,222
Grants	<u>3,046,453</u>	<u>3,046,453</u>
Total	<del>11,884,113</del>	12,184,213
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>759,697</del>	1,059,797
Transportation fund	4,429,971	4,429,971
Special funds	<del>1,393,043</del>	1,896,043
Federal funds	4,677,888	4,677,888
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>623,514</u>	<u>120,514</u>
Total	<del>11,884,113</del>	12,184,213

Sec. 11. Sec. 2.121 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.121. Center for crime victims services

Personal services	1,404,168	1,404,168
Operating expenses	318,275	318,275
Grants	<u>9,624,834</u>	<u>9,091,834</u>
Total	<del>11,347,277</del>	10,814,277
Source of funds		
General fund	49,809	49,809
Special funds	<del>7,432,390</del>	6,899,390
Federal funds	<u>3,865,078</u>	<u>3,865,078</u>
Total	<del>11,347,277</del>	10,814,277

Sec. 12. Sec. 2.142 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.142. Liquor control - administration

Personal services	1,476,488	1,476,488
Operating expenses	<del>422,089</del>	428,750
Total	<del>1,898,577</del>	1,905,238
Source of funds		
Enterprise funds	1,694,577	1,694,577
<u>Tobacco fund</u>		6,661
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>204,000</u>	<u>204,000</u>

Total	<del>1,898,577</del>	1,905,238
-------	----------------------	-----------

Sec. 13. Sec. 2.145 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.145. Total protection to persons and property

	<del>256,999,660</del>	259,245,579
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>90,404,831</del>	93,104,352
Transportation fund	<del>32,725,324</del>	32,725,324
Special funds	<del>66,951,903</del>	66,924,640
Tobacco fund	<del>619,645</del>	696,306
Global Commitment fund	<del>1,898,824</del>	1,898,824
Federal funds	<del>49,775,682</del>	49,775,682
Enterprise funds	<del>4,735,317</del>	4,735,317
Interdepartmental transfer	<del>9,888,134</del>	9,385,134
Total	<del>256,999,660</del>	259,245,579

Sec. 14. Sec. 2.201 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.201. Agency of human services - secretary's office

Personal services	<del>6,977,471</del>	7,174,248
Operating expenses	<del>3,004,134</del>	3,023,587
Grants	<del>3,671,153</del>	4,142,977
Total	<del>13,652,758</del>	14,340,812
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>4,360,112</del>	4,554,264
Special funds	<del>7,517</del>	7,517
<u>Global Commitment fund</u>		415,000
Tobacco funds	<del>397,021</del>	397,021
Federal funds	<del>5,183,280</del>	5,443,891
Interdepartmental transfer	<del>3,704,828</del>	3,523,119
Total	<del>13,652,758</del>	14,340,812

Sec. 15. Sec. 2.202 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.202. Secretary's office - Global Commitment

Grants	<del>909,022,731</del>	928,583,437
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>132,807,629</del>	85,896,217
Special fund	<del>16,261,307</del>	16,045,307
Tobacco fund	<del>39,487,801</del>	39,487,801
State health care resources fund	<del>147,623,246</del>	148,261,016
Catamount fund	<del>8,186,672</del>	8,229,295
Federal funds	<del>564,293,422</del>	570,987,388

<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		59,313,759
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>362,654</u>	<u>362,654</u>
Total	<u>909,022,731</u>	928,583,437

Sec. 16. Sec. 2.205 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.205. Human services board

Personal services	284,719	284,719
Operating expenses	<u>65,106</u>	<u>65,106</u>
Total	349,825	349,825
Source of funds		
General fund	50,030	50,030
Federal funds	<u>12,254</u>	149,897
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>287,541</u>	<u>149,898</u>
Total	349,825	349,825

Sec. 17. Sec. 2.206 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.206. Office of Vermont health access - administration

Personal services	<del>32,033,668</del>	36,514,151
Operating expenses	2,724,407	2,724,407
Grants	<u>1,196,000</u>	<u>1,010,700</u>
Total	<del>35,954,075</del>	40,249,258
Source of funds		
General fund	75,246	228,241
Global Commitment fund	<del>34,428,247</del>	38,597,284
Catamount fund	750,582	351,627
Federal funds	<u>700,000</u>	<u>1,072,106</u>
Total	<del>35,954,075</del>	40,249,258

Sec. 18. Sec. 2.207 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.207. Office of Vermont health access - Medicaid program - Global Commitment

Grants	<del>461,385,056</del>	467,778,316
Source of funds		
Global Commitment fund	<del>461,385,056</del>	467,778,316

Sec. 19. Sec. 2.208 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.208. Office of Vermont health access - Medicaid program - long-term care waiver

Grants	<del>194,755,729</del>	200,956,746
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>79,168,224</del>	68,589,966

Federal funds	<u>115,587,505</u>	119,267,829
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		<u>13,098,951</u>
Total	<u>194,755,729</u>	200,956,746

Sec. 20. Sec. 2.209 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.209. Office of Vermont health access - Medicaid program - state only

Grants	<u>55,086,870</u>	39,357,551
Source of funds		
General funds	<u>35,376,640</u>	28,509,473
Global Commitment fund	<u>1,383,714</u>	1,316,718
Catamount fund	<u>18,326,516</u>	<u>9,531,360</u>
Total	<u>55,086,870</u>	39,357,551

Sec. 21. Sec. 2.210 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.210. Office of Vermont health access - Medicaid non-waiver matched

Grants	<u>44,448,317</u>	44,176,458
Source of funds		
General funds	<u>16,068,046</u>	15,970,521
Federal funds	<u>28,380,271</u>	<u>28,205,937</u>
Total	<u>44,448,317</u>	44,176,458

Sec. 22. Sec. 2.211 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.211. Health - administration and support

Personal services	<u>6,409,341</u>	6,447,115
Operating expenses	2,582,888	2,582,888
Grants	<u>2,902,000</u>	<u>2,877,000</u>
Total	<u>11,894,229</u>	11,907,003
Source of funds		
General funds	651,479	651,479
Special funds	24,743	24,743
Global Commitment fund	<u>4,860,720</u>	4,873,494
Federal funds	6,285,287	6,285,287
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>72,000</u>	<u>72,000</u>
Total	<u>11,894,229</u>	11,907,003

Sec. 23. Sec. 2.211.1 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.211.1. Health - public health

Personal services	<u>36,310,118</u>	37,855,081
Operating expenses	7,326,174	7,326,174
Grants	<u>34,895,747</u>	<u>35,073,747</u>
Total	<u>78,532,039</u>	80,255,002

Source of funds		
General fund	5,090,652	5,479,402
Special funds	6,362,319	4,515,606
Tobacco fund	2,780,225	2,780,225
Global Commitment fund	24,048,864	25,383,077
Catamount fund	3,250,000	5,096,713
Federal funds	36,397,848	36,397,848
Permanent trust funds	10,000	10,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>592,131</u>	<u>592,131</u>
Total	<del>78,532,039</del>	80,255,002

Sec. 24. Sec. 2.217 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.217. Health - alcohol and drug abuse programs

Personal services	3,372,335	3,385,862
Operating expenses	811,106	708,263
Grants	<u>27,528,671</u>	<u>27,528,671</u>
Total	<del>31,712,112</del>	31,622,796

Source of funds

General fund	3,413,874	3,311,031
Special funds	236,210	236,210
Tobacco funds	2,382,834	2,382,834
Global Commitment fund	<del>16,840,983</del>	16,854,510
Federal funds	8,688,211	8,688,211
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>150,000</u>	<u>150,000</u>
Total	<del>31,712,112</del>	31,622,796

Sec. 25. Sec. 2.219 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.219. Mental health - mental health

Personal services	4,963,769	4,753,680
Operating expenses	614,618	614,618
Grants	<del>132,073,344</del>	<u>131,967,443</u>
Total	<del>137,651,731</del>	137,335,741

Source of funds

General fund	703,540	703,540
Global Commitment fund	<del>132,849,352</del>	132,533,362
Federal funds	4,078,839	4,078,839
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>20,000</u>	<u>20,000</u>
Total	<del>137,651,731</del>	137,335,741

Sec. 26. Sec. 2.220 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.220. Mental health - Vermont state hospital

Personal services	19,922,915	20,285,503
Operating expenses	1,821,721	1,821,721
Grants	<u>3,000</u>	<u>3,000</u>
Total	<u>21,747,636</u>	22,110,224
Source of funds		
General fund	14,227,636	21,140,224
Special funds	170,000	170,000
Global Commitment fund	<u>7,000,000</u>	450,000
Federal funds	50,000	50,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>300,000</u>	<u>300,000</u>
Total	<u>21,747,636</u>	22,110,224

Sec. 27. Sec. 2.221 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.221. Department for children and families - administration & support services

Personal services	33,227,280	34,954,219
Operating expenses	6,655,247	7,370,900
Grants	<u>1,450,215</u>	<u>1,450,215</u>
Total	<u>41,332,742</u>	43,775,334
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>12,422,107</del>	13,627,359
Global Commitment fund	<del>14,698,891</del>	14,799,359
Catamount fund	560,036	560,036
Federal funds	13,651,708	14,484,506
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		<u>304,074</u>
Total	<u>41,332,742</u>	43,775,334

Sec. 28. Sec. 2.222 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.222. Department for children and families - family services

Personal services	21,476,718	21,618,703
Operating expenses	3,330,327	3,162,879
Grants	<u>64,337,283</u>	<u>65,678,018</u>
Total	<u>89,144,328</u>	90,459,600
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>17,308,746</del>	18,273,249
Special funds	1,938,367	1,938,367
Tobacco funds	275,000	275,000
Global Commitment fund	<del>43,690,692</del>	43,224,231
Federal funds	<del>25,669,650</del>	26,486,880
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>261,873</u>	<u>261,873</u>
Total	<u>89,144,328</u>	90,459,600

Sec. 29. Sec. 2.223 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.223. Department for children and families - child development

Personal services	3,338,891	3,338,891
Operating expenses	<del>843,660</del>	520,557
Grants	<u>51,064,583</u>	<u>54,940,903</u>
Total	<u>55,247,134</u>	58,800,351
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>23,228,747</del>	25,621,964
Special funds	865,000	865,000
Global Commitment fund	<del>4,289,469</del>	5,365,469
Federal funds	<del>26,724,411</del>	26,808,411
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>139,507</u>	<u>139,507</u>
Total	<u>55,247,134</u>	58,800,351

Sec. 30. Sec. 2.224 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.224. Department for children and families - office of child support

Personal services	8,768,046	8,558,676
Operating expenses	<del>3,890,320</del>	<u>4,170,838</u>
Total	<del>12,658,366</del>	12,729,514
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>2,690,872</del>	2,559,002
Special funds	455,718	455,718
Federal funds	<del>9,124,176</del>	8,868,194
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		459,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>387,600</u>	<u>387,600</u>
Total	<del>12,658,366</del>	12,729,514

Sec. 31. Sec. 2.225 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.225. Department for children and families - aid to aged, blind and disabled

Personal services	1,801,009	1,801,009
Grants	<del>9,989,580</del>	<u>10,145,700</u>
Total	<del>11,790,589</del>	11,946,709
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>8,040,589</del>	8,196,709
Global Commitment fund	<u>3,750,000</u>	<u>3,750,000</u>
Total	<del>11,790,589</del>	11,946,709

Sec. 32. Sec. 2.226 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.226. Department for children and families - general assistance

Grants	4,401,516	6,301,516
Source of funds		
General fund	2,950,196	4,850,196
Global Commitment fund	340,000	340,000
Federal funds	<u>1,111,320</u>	<u>1,111,320</u>
Total	4,401,516	6,301,516

Sec. 33. Sec. 2.227 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.227. Department for children and families - food stamp cash out

Grants	<del>10,710,133</del>	15,285,013
Source of funds		
Federal funds	<del>10,710,133</del>	15,285,013

Sec. 34. Sec. 2.228 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.228. Department for children and families - reach up

Grants	<del>40,298,530</del>	45,437,952
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>13,815,723</del>	15,950,049
<u>Global Commitment fund</u>		390,000
Special funds	18,200,000	18,200,000
Federal funds	<del>8,282,807</del>	8,582,807
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		<u>2,315,096</u>
Total	40,298,530	45,437,952

Sec. 35. Sec. 2.230 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.230. Department for children and families - office of economic opportunity

Personal services	235,441	235,441
Operating expenses	<del>81,555</del>	77,055
Grants	<del>4,952,562</del>	<u>5,202,562</u>
Total	<del>5,269,558</del>	5,515,058
Source of funds		
General fund	1,372,103	1,372,103
Special funds	<del>57,340</del>	307,340
Federal funds	<del>3,797,615</del>	3,793,115
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>42,500</u>	<u>42,500</u>
Total	5,269,558	5,515,058

Sec. 36. Sec. 2.232 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.232. Department for children and families - Woodside rehabilitation center

Personal services	2,899,574	3,132,974
Operating expenses	<u>649,151</u>	<u>599,151</u>
Total	3,548,725	3,732,125
Source of funds		
General fund	3,493,833	3,677,233
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>54,892</u>	<u>54,892</u>
Total	3,548,725	3,732,125

Sec. 37. Sec. 2.235 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.235. Disabilities, aging, and independent living - administration & support

Personal services	24,187,650	24,096,125
Operating expenses	<u>3,732,463</u>	<u>3,732,463</u>
Total	27,920,113	27,828,588
Source of funds		
General fund	6,709,033	6,557,508
Special funds	941,685	941,685
Global Commitment fund	<u>6,254,872</u>	6,314,872
Federal funds	11,524,001	11,524,001
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>2,490,522</u>	<u>2,490,522</u>
Total	27,920,113	27,828,588

Sec. 38. Sec. 2.236 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.236. Disabilities, aging, and independent living - advocacy and independent living

Grants	21,455,103	21,779,103
Source of funds		
General fund	10,006,493	10,330,493
Global Commitment fund	3,355,319	3,355,319
Federal funds	7,655,791	7,655,791
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>437,500</u>	<u>437,500</u>
Total	21,455,103	21,779,103

Sec. 39. Sec. 2.238 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.238. Disabilities, aging, and independent living - vocational rehabilitation

Grants	5,921,471	5,968,971
Source of funds		
General fund	1,495,695	1,535,695
<u>Global Commitment fund</u>		7,500
Federal funds	4,132,389	4,132,389

Interdepartmental transfer	<u>293,387</u>	<u>293,387</u>
Total	<del>5,921,471</del>	5,968,971

Sec. 40. Sec. 2.239 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.239. Disabilities, aging and independent living - developmental services

Grants	<del>138,705,970</del>	139,846,155
Source of funds		
General fund	185,693	185,693
Special funds	185,463	185,463
Global Commitment fund	<del>137,964,074</del>	139,104,259
Federal funds	<u>370,740</u>	<u>370,740</u>
Total	<del>138,705,970</del>	139,846,155

Sec. 41. Sec. 2.241 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.241. Corrections - administration

Personal services	<del>2,022,147</del>	2,126,692
Operating expenses	<u>315,394</u>	<u>315,394</u>
Total	<del>2,337,541</del>	2,442,086
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>2,337,541</del>	2,442,086

Sec. 42. Sec. 2.242 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.242. Corrections - parole board

Personal services	<del>317,373</del>	319,240
Operating expenses	<u>62,076</u>	<u>62,076</u>
Total	<del>379,449</del>	381,316
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>379,449</del>	381,316

Sec. 43. Sec. 2.243 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.243. Corrections - correctional education

Personal services	<del>4,032,390</del>	3,915,100
Operating expenses	<u>342,079</u>	<u>342,079</u>
Total	<del>4,374,469</del>	4,257,179
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>3,476,001</del>	3,358,711
Special funds	500,000	500,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>398,468</u>	<u>398,468</u>
Total	<del>4,374,469</del>	4,257,179

Sec. 44. Sec. 2.244 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.244. Corrections - correctional services

Personal services	<del>77,382,681</del>	77,922,980
Operating expenses	<del>32,273,859</del>	32,637,551
Grants	<u>1,695,800</u>	<u>1,895,800</u>
Total	<del>111,352,340</del>	112,456,331
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>106,870,826</del>	108,024,817
Special funds	<del>633,963</del>	583,963
Tobacco fund	87,500	87,500
Global Commitment fund	3,094,144	3,094,144
Federal funds	584,861	584,861
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>81,046</u>	<u>81,046</u>
Total	<del>111,352,340</del>	112,456,331

Sec. 45. Sec. 2.245 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.245. Corrections - correctional services - out-of-state beds

Operating expenses	<del>12,158,493</del>	11,457,276
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>12,158,493</del>	11,457,276

Sec. 46. Sec. 2.251 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.251. Total human services	<del>2,649,379,658</del>	2,693,603,326
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>521,931,597</del>	474,482,196
Special funds	<del>66,707,178</del>	64,844,465
Tobacco fund	45,410,381	45,410,381
Global Commitment fund	<del>906,593,258</del>	914,305,775
State health care resources fund	<del>147,623,246</del>	148,261,016
Catamount fund	<del>31,073,806</del>	23,769,031
Federal funds	<del>916,671,195</del>	933,989,937
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		75,490,880
Permanent trust funds	10,000	10,000
Internal service funds	3,282,548	3,282,548
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>10,076,449</u>	<u>9,757,097</u>
Total	<del>2,649,379,658</del>	2,693,603,326

Sec. 47. Sec. 2.303 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.303. Labor - domestic and sexual violence survivors' transitional employment program

Grants	<del>15,000</del>	30,000
Source of funds		

Special fund	<del>15,000</del>	30,000
--------------	-------------------	--------

Sec. 48. Sec. 2.304 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.304. Total labor	<del>29,020,561</del>	29,035,561
-------------------------	-----------------------	------------

Source of funds

General fund	2,307,673	2,307,673
Special funds	<del>3,301,108</del>	3,316,108
Catamount fund	394,072	394,072
Federal funds	20,613,870	20,613,870
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>2,403,838</u>	<u>2,403,838</u>
Total	<del>29,020,561</del>	29,035,561

Sec. 49. Sec. 2.305 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.305. Education - finance and administration

Personal services	5,161,711	5,161,711
Operating expenses	<del>1,713,880</del>	1,813,880
Grants	<u>10,757,117</u>	<u>10,757,117</u>
Total	<del>17,632,708</del>	17,732,708

Source of funds

General fund	<del>3,506,583</del>	3,606,583
Special funds	11,383,118	11,383,118
Global Commitment fund	845,143	845,143
Federal funds	1,890,747	1,890,747
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>7,117</u>	<u>7,117</u>
Total	<del>17,632,708</del>	17,732,708

Sec. 50. Sec. 2.306 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.306. Education - education services

Personal services	12,608,878	12,608,878
Operating expenses	1,889,869	1,889,869
Grants	<del>111,549,873</del>	<u>111,437,175</u>
Total	<del>126,048,620</del>	125,935,922

Source of funds

General fund	<del>7,766,318</del>	7,781,103
Transportation fund	<del>127,483</del>	
Special funds	1,985,599	1,985,599
Federal funds	116,144,125	116,144,125
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>25,095</u>	<u>25,095</u>
Total	<del>126,048,620</del>	125,935,922

Sec. 51. Sec. 2.308 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.308. Education - state-placed students

Grants	<del>15,767,500</del>	16,367,500
Source of funds		
Education fund	<del>15,767,500</del>	16,367,500

Sec. 52. Sec. 2.309 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.309. Education - adult education and literacy

Grants	<del>5,315,885</del>	5,821,268
Source of funds		
General fund	2,690,224	2,690,224
Education fund	<del>1,750,000</del>	2,250,000
Federal funds	<del>875,661</del>	<u>881,044</u>
Total	<del>5,315,885</del>	5,821,268

Sec. 53. Sec. 2.310 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.310. Education - adjusted education payment

Grants	<del>1,115,355,604</del>	1,111,968,302
Source of funds		
Education fund	<del>1,115,355,604</del>	1,111,968,302

Sec. 54. Sec. 2.314 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.314. Education - tobacco litigation

Personal services	142,152	142,152
Operating expenses	<del>18,114</del>	11,453
Grants	<del>835,402</del>	<u>835,402</u>
Total	<del>995,668</del>	989,007
Source of funds		
Tobacco fund	<del>995,668</del>	989,007

Sec. 55. Sec. 2.320 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.320. Total general education	<del>1,814,547,027</del>	1,812,245,749
Source of funds		
General fund	<del>338,640,022</del>	338,754,807
Transportation fund	<del>127,483</del>	
Education fund	<del>1,315,047,726</del>	1,312,760,424
Special funds	14,699,439	14,699,439
Tobacco fund	<del>995,668</del>	989,007
Global Commitment fund	1,075,143	1,075,143
Federal funds	<del>118,910,533</del>	118,915,916
Pension trust funds	25,018,801	25,018,801

Interdepartmental transfer	<u>32,212</u>	<u>32,212</u>
Total	<del>1,814,547,027</del>	1,812,245,749

Sec. 56. Sec. 2.327 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.327. Vermont student assistance corporation

Grants	<u>19,153,758</u>	19,129,758
Source of funds		
General fund	<u>19,153,758</u>	19,129,758

Sec. 57. Sec. 2.329 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.329. Total higher education and other	<del>88,256,776</del>	88,232,776
Source of funds		
General fund	<u>83,845,213</u>	83,821,213
Global Commitment fund	<u>4,411,563</u>	<u>4,411,563</u>
Total	<del>88,256,776</del>	88,232,776

Sec. 58. Sec. 2.601 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.601. Transportation - finance and administration

Personal services	<u>9,314,503</u>	9,194,503
Operating expenses	<u>2,560,917</u>	<u>2,560,917</u>
Total	<del>11,875,420</del>	11,755,420
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	<u>11,375,420</u>	11,255,420
Federal funds	<u>500,000</u>	<u>500,000</u>
Total	<del>11,875,420</del>	11,755,420

Sec. 59. Sec. 2.604 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.604. Transportation - program development

Personal services	35,192,941	35,192,941
Operating expenses	<del>106,514,171</del>	159,788,137
Grants	<u>23,370,050</u>	<u>23,370,050</u>
Total	<del>165,077,162</del>	218,351,128
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	<del>28,465,101</del>	27,499,067
Local match	1,476,992	1,476,992
Federal funds	131,223,819	131,463,819
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		54,000,000
Interdepartmental transfer	<u>3,911,250</u>	<u>3,911,250</u>
Total	<del>165,077,162</del>	218,351,128

Sec. 60. Sec. 2.609 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.609. Transportation - bridge maintenance

Operating expenses	<del>12,448,348</del>	10,798,348
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	<del>3,008,456</del>	1,358,456
Federal funds	<del>9,439,892</del>	<u>9,439,892</u>
Total	<del>12,448,348</del>	10,798,348

Sec. 60a. Sec. 2.610 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.610. Transportation – public transit

Personal services	646,295	646,295
Operating expenses	58,784	58,784
Grants	<del>19,014,142</del>	<u>24,694,142</u>
Total	<del>19,719,221</del>	25,399,221
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	6,677,897	6,677,897
Federal funds	13,041,324	13,041,324
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		<u>5,680,000</u>
Total	<del>19,719,221</del>	25,399,221

Sec. 61. Sec. 2.611 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.611. Transportation - central garage

Personal services	3,305,508	3,305,508
Operating expenses	<del>11,625,266</del>	<u>10,922,675</u>
Total	<del>14,930,774</del>	14,228,183
Source of funds		
Internal service funds	14,930,774	14,228,183

Sec. 62. Sec. 2.612 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.612. Department of motor vehicles

Personal services	<del>17,549,186</del>	16,549,186
Operating expenses	8,037,725	8,037,725
Grants	<u>339,000</u>	<u>339,000</u>
Total	<del>25,925,911</del>	24,925,911
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	<del>23,854,657</del>	22,854,657
Federal funds	<u>2,071,254</u>	<u>2,071,254</u>
Total	<del>25,925,911</del>	24,925,911

Sec. 62a. Sec. 2.613 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.613. Transportation - town highway structures

Grants	3,833,500	3,494,500
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	3,833,500	3,494,500

Sec. 62b. Sec. 2.615 of No. 102 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.615. Transportation - town highway class 2 roadway

Grants	6,448,750	5,748,750
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	6,448,750	5,748,750

Sec. 63. Sec. 2.618.1 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.618.1. Transportation - town highway emergency fund

Grants	250,000	880,000
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	250,000	880,000

Sec. 64. Sec. 2.622. of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.622. Total transportation	412,801,007	467,873,382
Source of funds		
Transportation fund	187,152,506	183,007,472
Local match	2,553,311	2,553,311
Federal funds	203,753,166	203,993,166
<u>Federal ARRA funds</u>		59,680,000
Internal service funds	14,930,774	14,228,183
Interdepartmental transfer	4,411,250	4,411,250
Total	412,801,007	467,873,382

#### Sec. 65. APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENTS

(a) To reflect adjustments to budgets due to savings in budgeted benefit rates (dental plan, medical plan, and employee assistance plan), personal service appropriations are reduced by \$1,260,463 in general funds in accordance with the schedule entitled "FY 2009 Appropriation Reductions Due to Budgeted Benefit Rate Savings," filed with the joint fiscal committee.

(b) In addition to the pay act appropriations made to the secretary of administration in Sec. 3(a)(1) of No. 206 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008), there is hereby appropriated from the general fund to the secretary of administration in fiscal year 2009 \$54,624 for transfer to the department for children and families, \$616,912 for transfer to the department of corrections, and \$588,927 for transfer to the department of human resources for the non-salary items entailed by the VSEA/state bargaining agreement in effect for fiscal year 2009.

Sec. 65a. Sec. 2.802(a) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 2.802. FISCAL YEAR 2009 ONE-TIME APPROPRIATIONS

\* \* \*

(6) to the treasurer for the cost of short term borrowing in fiscal year 2009 \$100,000

(7) to the Vermont Economic Development Authority to be used by the Vermont Agricultural Credit Corporation for a loan or grant program to assist Vermont farmers with short-term cash flow and capital to meet spring 2009 operating and related needs \$1,000,000

Sec. 66. Sec. 3(a)(1)(B) of No. 206 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(B) Transportation fund. The amount of ~~\$1,210,258.00~~ \$841,078.00 is appropriated from the transportation fund to the secretary of administration for distribution to the agency of transportation and the department of public safety to fund the fiscal year 2009 collective bargaining agreement and the requirements of this act.

Sec. 67. FUND TRANSFERS

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, in fiscal year 2009:

(1) The following amounts shall be transferred to the general fund from the funds indicated:

<u>21005 FMS System Development Fund</u>	<u>600,000</u>
<u>21030 Exxon Settlement Fund</u>	<u>3,631</u> Approx.
<u>21045 Getty Oil Company Settlement</u>	<u>63,343</u> Approx.
<u>21170 EO School Interest Program</u>	<u>15,634</u> Approx.
<u>21705 PSD-HydroQuebec Power</u>	<u>64,426</u>
<u>21405 Fidelity\interest earnings</u>	<u>450,000</u> Approx.
<u>62100 Abandoned property</u>	<u>2,055,517</u> Approx.
<u>Amortization of W.R. Grace</u>	<u>5,452</u>
<u>Caledonia Fair</u>	<u>5,000</u>
<u>North Country Hospital Loan</u>	<u>24,250</u>
<u>50300 Liquor Control</u>	<u>836,519</u>
<u>22005 AHS Central Office earned federal receipts</u>	<u>1,400,000</u>
<u>21782 Vermont Veterans' Home</u>	<u>1,090,000</u>

<u>21110 Employee Leasing Companies</u>	<u>3,303</u>
<u>21520 Treasurer's Retirement Admin. Cost</u>	<u>440</u>
<u>21585 Pers-Human Resource Development</u>	<u>42,000</u>
<u>21638 Attny. Gen. Fees- Reimbursements</u>	<u>1,659,234</u>
<u>21669 AF&amp;M Pesticide Monitoring</u>	<u>50,000</u>
<u>21686 AF&amp;M Pesticide Control</u>	<u>75,000</u>
<u>21844 PERS - Recruitment Services</u>	<u>33,152</u>
<u>21845 Chittenden COPS Grant</u>	<u>19,492</u>
<u>21848 ED-Private Sector Grants</u>	<u>3,889</u>
<u>21870 Misc. Special Revenue Fund- Liquor</u>	
<u>Control (Bus Unit #2300)</u>	<u>1,420</u>
<u>21884 Emergency Personnel Survivors' Benefit Fund</u>	<u>50,000</u>
<u>Bond Premium</u>	<u>388,239</u>
<u>59500 Single Audit Internal Service Fund</u>	<u>20,297</u>
<u>21260 Act 250 Permit Fund</u>	<u>100,000</u>
<u>21698 PSD Regulation/Energy Efficiency</u>	<u>345,000</u>
<u>21709 PSB Special Fund</u>	<u>328,000</u>
<u>21991 VEDA - Food &amp; Fuel</u>	<u>100,000</u>

(2) All or a portion of the unencumbered balances in the insurance regulatory and supervision fund (Fund Number 21075), the captive insurance regulatory and supervision fund (Fund Number 21085), and the securities regulatory and supervision fund (Fund Number 21080), expected to be approximately \$16,035,260, shall be transferred to the general fund, provided that on or before July 1, 2009, the commissioner of banking, insurance, securities, and health care administration certifies to the joint fiscal committee that the transfer of such balances, or any smaller portion deemed proper by the commissioner, will not impair the ability of the department in fiscal year 2010 to provide thorough, competent, fair, and effective regulatory services, or maintain accreditation by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners; and that the joint fiscal committee does not reject such certification.

(3) The following amounts shall be transferred from the general fund to the funds indicated:

<u>58800 Facilities Operations Fund</u>	<u>2,318,763</u>
<u>21035 Stripper Well Settlement</u>	
<u>Special Fund</u>	<u>6,511 Approx.</u>
<u>21175 Palo Pinto Special Fund</u>	<u>661 Approx.</u>
<u>21714 VT Racing Commission Special Fund</u>	<u>5,206</u>
<u>21911 Sarcoidosis Fund</u>	<u>419,688</u>
<u>21555 Emergency Relief and Assistance</u>	
<u>Fund (ERAF)</u>	<u>1,692,096</u>

(4) The following amount shall be transferred between special funds as indicated:

From the Unemployment Compensation Administration fund # 21360 to the Workers' Compensation Administration fund # 21105 703,171

(5)(A) The following amount shall be transferred to the transportation fund from the fund indicated:

<u>57100 Central Garage Fund</u>	<u>1,485,111</u>
----------------------------------	------------------

Sec. 68. REVERSIONS

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, in fiscal year 2009:

(1) The following amounts shall revert to the general fund from the accounts indicated:

<u>2270001000 Vermont Racing Commission</u>	<u>477</u>
<u>3440090000 LIHEAP</u>	<u>1,383,336</u>
<u>1100010000 Secretary of Admin.</u>	<u>27,065</u>
<u>1120060000 Human Resources - Workforce Planning</u>	<u>45,493</u>
<u>1140040000 Homeowner Rebates</u>	<u>45,104</u>
<u>1140070000 Use Tax Reimbursement Program</u>	<u>58,171</u>
<u>1140330000 Renter Rebates</u>	<u>40,333</u>
<u>1210890505 Dairy Policy Cont Consult Services</u>	<u>226</u>
<u>1210890803 Leg. Council - Current Use Tax Study</u>	<u>712</u>
<u>1250010000 Auditor of Accounts</u>	<u>23,606</u>
<u>2100890802 Legal Costs Comp. Legal Actions –</u>	
<u>Attny. Gen.</u>	<u>5,000</u>

<u>2130100000 State's Attorneys</u>	<u>66,788</u>
<u>2230010000 Secretary of State</u>	<u>11,288</u>
<u>3420890508 Health - Pilot Program</u>	<u>15,000</u>
<u>3420890701 Methamphetamine Precursor Program</u>	<u>20,000</u>
<u>6140880005 152/00 St. Asst. Munic. Poll Cont.</u>	<u>381</u>
<u>1110890901 VEDA FY 2009 One-Time Appropriation: Targeted Emergency Financing Assistance</u>	<u>500,000</u>

(2) The following amounts shall revert to the education fund from the accounts indicated:

<u>1140050000 Homestead Prop. Tax Assistance</u>	<u>970,497</u>
<u>1140330000 Renter Rebates</u>	<u>856,574</u>
<u>5100090000 Education Grant</u>	<u>1,083,408</u>
<u>5100190000 Essential Early Educ. Grant</u>	<u>104,082</u>
<u>5100200000 Education-Technical Education</u>	<u>570,327</u>
<u>5100890601 Cncl. on Ed. Governance Grants</u>	<u>4,823</u>

Sec. 69. CARRY FORWARD AUTHORITY

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law and subject to the approval of the secretary of administration, general, transportation and education fund appropriations remaining unexpended on June 30, 2009 in the executive branch of state government shall be carried forward and shall be designated for expenditure.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, general and transportation fund appropriations remaining unexpended on June 30, 2009 in the legislative and judicial branch of state government shall be carried forward and shall be designated for expenditure.

Sec. 70. FY 2009 RESCISSIONS; JOINT FISCAL COMMITTEE ACTIONS PURSUANT TO 32 V.S.A. § 704(f)

(a) The fiscal year 2009 appropriations passed in No. 192 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008) have been adjusted by actions of the joint fiscal committee on August 27, 2008 and December 19, 2008, pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 704(f). In order to provide public access to the fiscal year 2009 expenditure reduction plans duly adopted by the joint fiscal committee, the approved plans and schedules of specific appropriation reductions are on file with the clerk of the house and the secretary of the senate, and posted on the legislative website.

The appropriation changes and other actions in the fiscal year 2009 budget adjustment act and other acts of the 2009 legislative session are separate from and in addition to the actions of the joint fiscal committee pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 704(f).

Sec. 71. Sec. 4.001 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 4.001. APPROPRIATIONS; PROPERTY TRANSFER TAX

(a) This act contains the following amounts appropriated from special funds that receive revenue from the property transfer tax. Expenditures from these appropriations shall not exceed available revenues. Notwithstanding Sec. 266(a)(4) of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007:

(1) The sum of \$314,503 is appropriated from the property valuation and review administration special fund to the department of taxes for administration of the use tax reimbursement program. Notwithstanding 32 V.S.A. § 9610(c), amounts above \$314,503 from the property transfer tax that are deposited into the property valuation and review administration special fund shall be transferred into the general fund.

(2) The sum of ~~\$13,383,258~~ \$12,464,095 is appropriated from the Vermont housing and conservation trust fund to the Vermont housing and conservation trust board. Notwithstanding 10 V.S.A. § 312, amounts above ~~\$13,383,258~~ \$12,464,095 from the property transfer tax that are deposited into the Vermont housing and conservation trust fund shall be transferred into the general fund.

(3) The sum of ~~\$4,302,105~~ \$3,449,427 is appropriated from the municipal and regional planning fund. Notwithstanding 24 V.S.A. § 4306(a), amounts above ~~\$4,302,105~~ \$3,449,427 from the property transfer tax that are deposited into the municipal and regional planning fund shall be transferred into the general fund. The ~~\$4,302,105~~ \$3,449,427 shall be allocated as follows:

(A) ~~\$3,011,473~~ \$2,632,027 for disbursement to regional planning commissions in a manner consistent with 24 V.S.A. § 4306(b);

(B) ~~\$860,424~~ \$408,700 for disbursement to municipalities in a manner consistent with 24 V.S.A. § 4306(b);

(C) ~~\$430,210~~ \$408,700 to the Vermont center for geographic information.

(4) It is the intent of the general assembly that in fiscal year 2010, the appropriations in this subsection shall increase by at least 4.5 percent.

Sec. 72. Sec. 5.006(a) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(a) Of this appropriation, ~~\$150,000~~ \$75,000 is made available for grants to be

awarded on a competitive basis among the 11 existing regional marketing programs (RMP). In addition to these funds, any prior fiscal year RMP grant funds not awarded shall carry forward into the current fiscal year unrestricted by prior year requirements and shall be used to meet current year obligations. Any unobligated balance residing in the crossroads regional marketing program grant, as appropriated in Sec. 233a(a)(9) of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007, is hereby relieved of any prior year restrictions and may be used to meet the current year obligations of the RMP as appropriated in this section.

Sec. 73. Sec. 5.013(a) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(a) Of this general fund appropriation, ~~\$30,000~~ \$6,484 shall be deposited into the armed services scholarship fund established in 16 V.S.A. § 2541.

Sec. 74. Sec. 5.101.1(b) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

~~(b) \$30,000 of this appropriation shall be used for the Vermont sentencing commission recidivism rate analysis by the center for justice research.~~

Sec. 75. Sec. 111b of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007, as amended by Sec. 5.203.1 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008, is further amended to read:

Sec. 111b. CHIROPRACTIC COVERAGE UNDER MEDICAID AND VHAP

(a) Effective on July 1, 2008 through January 31, 2009, the agency of human services shall reinstate chiropractic coverage for adults in the Medicaid and VHAP programs consistent with section 4088a of Title 8 and at rates comparable to payments for care or services by other health care providers not to exceed Medicare rates. ~~The fiscal year 2009 Medicaid expenditure forecast adopted by the emergency board shall include the reinstatement of chiropractic coverage.~~

Sec. 76. Sec. 5.310(b) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(b) Of this appropriation, ~~\$396,115~~ \$380,326 shall be transferred to EPSCoR (Experimental Program To Stimulate Competitive Research) for the purpose of complying with state matching fund requirements necessary for the receipt of available federal or private funds, or both.

Sec. 77. Sec. 5.311(b) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(b) Of this appropriation, ~~\$446,652~~ \$428,786 shall be transferred to the Vermont manufacturing extension center for the purpose of complying with state matching fund requirements necessary for the receipt of available federal or private funds or both.

Sec. 78. Sec. 5.313(c) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(c) ~~\$350,000~~ \$342,500 of state funds available to the Vermont student assistance corporation pursuant to Sec. 5.107(a) and 5.801(a)(3)(B) of this act shall be used for the purposes of 16 V.S.A. § 2856. Any unexpended funds from these allocations shall carry forward for this purpose.

Sec. 79. Sec. 5.801 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 5.801. FISCAL YEAR 2009 NEXT GENERATION FUND ALLOCATIONS (Sec. 2.801)

(a) The ~~\$8,000,000~~ \$7,293,000 appropriated in Sec. 2.801(a)(1) of this act from the next generation initiative fund, created in 16 V.S.A. § 2887, shall be as follows:

(1) Workforce development ~~\$3,450,000~~ \$3,220,500 as follows:

(A) Workforce Education Training Fund (WETF). The sum of ~~\$1,550,000~~ \$1,472,500 is appropriated to the Vermont workforce education and training fund, which is administered by the department of labor, for workforce development. Up to seven percent (7%) of the funds may be used for administration of the program.

(B) Vermont Training Program. The sum of ~~\$750,000~~ \$712,500 is appropriated to the agency of commerce and community development. This appropriation is for the Vermont training program for the issuance of grants pursuant to 10 V.S.A. § 531.

(C) Career and Alternative Workforce Education. The amount of ~~\$450,000~~ \$387,500 is appropriated to the department of labor. This appropriation shall be to support out-of-school youth, youth at risk, and youth at risk of remaining unemployed with outcomes that lead to employment or continued education as follows:

(i) ~~Forty-five~~ Fifty-two and three-tenths percent (~~45%~~) (52.3%) shall be for grants to regional technical centers, comprehensive high schools, and other programs for career exploration programs for students entering grades 7 through 12.

(ii) ~~Fifty-five~~ Forty-seven and seven-tenths percent (~~55%~~) (47.7%) shall be for grants to regional technical centers, comprehensive high schools, the community high school of Vermont, and ~~non-profit~~ nonprofit organizations, designated by the workforce development council, for alternative and intensive vocational/academic programs for secondary students in order to earn necessary credits toward graduation.

(D) Adult Technical Education Programs. The amount of ~~\$450,000~~ \$410,500 is appropriated to the department of labor, working with the workforce development council. This appropriation is for the purpose of

awarding grants to regional technical centers and comprehensive high schools to provide adult technical education, as that term is defined in 16 V.S.A.

§ 1522, to unemployed and underemployed Vermont adults.

(E) UVM Technology Transfer Program. The amount of ~~\$250,000~~ \$237,500 is appropriated to the University of Vermont. This appropriation is for patent development and commercialization of technology created at the university for the purpose of creating employment opportunities for Vermont residents.

(2) Loan repayment ~~\$500,000~~ \$475,000 as follows:

(A) The sum of ~~\$500,000~~ \$475,000 is appropriated to the agency of human services Global Commitment for the department of health to use for health care loan repayment. The department shall use these funds for a grant to the area health education centers (AHEC) for repayment of commercial or governmental loans for postsecondary health care-related education or training owed by persons living and working in Vermont in the health care field.

(3) Scholarships and grants ~~\$4,050,000~~ \$3,597,500 as follows:

(A) Non-degree VSAC Grants. The amount of ~~\$750,000~~ \$712,500 is appropriated to the Vermont student assistance corporation. This appropriation shall be for the purpose of providing non-degree grants to Vermonters to improve job skills and increase overall employability enabling them to enroll in a post-secondary education or training program, including adult-technical education that is not part of a degree or accredited certificate program. A portion of this appropriation shall be used for grants for indirect educational expenses to students enrolled in training programs. The grants shall not exceed \$3,000 per student. None of this appropriation shall be used for administrative overhead.

(B) The sum of ~~\$3,000,000~~ \$2,600,000 is appropriated for awarding need-based scholarships to Vermont residents. The first ~~\$150,000~~ \$142,500 shall be distributed to the Vermont student assistance corporation to fund the national guard educational assistance program established in 16 V.S.A. § 2856. ~~\$950,000~~ \$819,166 shall be distributed to the University of Vermont, ~~\$950,000~~ \$819,166 to the Vermont state colleges, and ~~\$950,000~~ \$819,166 to the Vermont student assistance corporation. The Vermont student assistance corporation shall reserve these funds for students attending institutions other than the University of Vermont or the Vermont state colleges. None of the ~~\$3,000,000~~ \$2,600,000 appropriation shall be used for administrative overhead.

(C) Dual Enrollment Programs. The sum of ~~\$300,000~~ \$285,000 is appropriated to the Vermont state colleges for dual enrollment programs. The state colleges shall develop a voucher program that will allow Vermont students to attend programs at a postsecondary institution other than the state college system when programs at the other institution are better academically or geographically suited to student need.

Sec. 80. Sec. 5.802 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 5.802. SETTLEMENT CONTINGENT APPROPRIATIONS (Sec. 2.803)

(a) The first ~~\$5,566,045~~ \$2,300,000 of any amount of bank franchise tax, and associated penalty and interest, due to the general fund resulting from a court decision and received ~~after May 1, 2008 in fiscal year 2008 or in fiscal year 2009~~ shall be reserved and is hereby appropriated ~~or transferred as follows:~~

(1) ~~First, \$1,000,000 is appropriated to the Vermont housing and conservation board;~~

(2) ~~Second, \$2,266,045 is appropriated to the higher education entities as follows:~~

(A) ~~\$1,056,796 to the University of Vermont.~~

(B) ~~\$730,405 to the Vermont state colleges of which \$100,000 is for use as the state's fiscal year 2009 contribution toward the growth of the endowment fund for the Vermont state colleges. The state's funds are to serve as a challenge match to enhance the state colleges' ability to secure endowment contributions from alumni and other interested parties. The intent is that the fiscal year 2009 appropriation will be the first of five annual appropriations through fiscal year 2013 totaling \$500,000. The conditions of this challenge match are that the state colleges are required to raise three dollars for each dollar appropriated by the state. A method for accounting for the state colleges' share has been agreed to between the state colleges and the commissioner of finance and management. Transfers to the state colleges' endowment fund shall be under the condition that only the interest accruing to the fund will be available for purposes as designated by the board of trustees of the state colleges. By June 30, 2014, any remaining state appropriations designated for the state colleges' endowment fund that have not been matched by the state colleges shall revert to the general fund.~~

(C) ~~\$478,844 to the Vermont student assistance corporation.~~

(3) ~~Third, \$2,300,000 is appropriated to the teachers' retirement fund.~~

~~(b) In the event that settlement funds as specified in subsection (a) are not received by January 1, 2009, the administration shall consider funding the above appropriations and transfers in the fiscal year 2009 adjustment process.~~

Sec. 81. 16 V.S.A. § 4011 is amended to read:

§ 4011. EDUCATION PAYMENTS

\* \* \*

(h) The commissioner shall make all payments required by subchapter 5 of chapter 23 of this title.

(i) Annually, by October 1, the commissioner shall send to school boards for inclusion in town reports and publish on the department website the following information:

(1) the statewide average district spending per equalized pupil for the current fiscal year; and 125 percent of that average spending; and

(2) a statewide comparison of student-teacher ratios among schools which are similar in number of students and number of grades.

Sec. 82. SALARY REDUCTIONS; EXEMPT EXECUTIVE BRANCH EMPLOYEES

(a) Notwithstanding statutory salaries to the contrary, in fiscal years 2009 and 2010, exempt executive branch employees may decline to accept their full statutory salaries.

Sec. 83. Sec. 5.003 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 5.003. FEDERAL FUNDS

\* \* \*

(c) During fiscal year 2009, any federal funds received and to be expended in the fiscal year from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 shall be accepted in accordance with the provisions of subsection (a) of this section. Federal funds from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, other than competitive grants, for expenditure in the following fiscal years shall be appropriated through the budget process including grants under Title V – State Fiscal Relief. Receipts from competitive grants shall be accepted through the statutory grant process in accordance with 32 V.S.A. § 5.

Sec. 83a. FEDERAL ECONOMIC RECOVERY FUNDS

(a) Division A – Title XII of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009 allocates federal funds to the state for transportation related projects. The allocation is subject to a requirement that 50% of a portion of the allocation be obligated by the state within a 120 day time period. The

secretary of transportation is authorized in fiscal year 2009 to obligate ARRA funds to the projects listed below as necessary to satisfy such requirements. The total amount obligated may exceed the 50% minimum to the extent the secretary determines the obligation of such additional amounts are necessary to ensure compliance with federal requirements after taking into account project readiness and other factors relevant to obtaining obligation approval.

<u>Project Name</u>	<u>Project Number</u>	<u>Type of Work</u>
Barre City	BHF 6000(15)	Bridge Rehabilitation
Bennington	NH 019-1(51)	Roadway on New Location
Brownington	BRO 1449(28)	Bridge Replacement
Burlington	NH 2726(1)	Resurfacing
Burlington	STP 2727(1)	Resurfacing
Colchester-Essex	STP 2616(1)	Resurfacing
Colchester-Georgia	IM 089-3(64)	Resurfacing
East Montpelier	BRF 028-3(36)	Bridge Replacement
Fair Haven	STP 2615(1)	Resurfacing
Fair Haven-Castleton	STP HES 2614(1)	Resurfacing
Fairlee	STP CULV(13)	Culvert Replacement
Hardwick	BHF 030-2(18)	Bridge Rehabilitation
Hartford	STP 2701(1)	Resurfacing
Hartford-Norwich	STP 2206(1)S	Resurfacing
Hartford-Sharon	IM 089-1(55)	Line Culverts
Hartford-Sharon	IM MEMB(15)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Montpelier	NH 2604(1) & STP 2618(1)	Resurfacing
Norton-Canaan	STP SURF(13)	Resurfacing
Norwich	STP 2602(1)	Resurfacing
Richmond	BHF 0209(6)	Bridge Rehabilitation
Richmond-Highgate	IM MEMB(13)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Rockingham-Chester	NH 2628(1)	Resurfacing
Royalton-Bethel	IM 089-1(54)	Resurfacing
Springfield	STP 0136(1)	Rehab. Existing Roadway

St. Johnsbury-Lyndon	IM MEMB(18)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Statewide	STP CRAK(27)	Resurfacing
Statewide -Southwest	BHF MEMB(20)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Statewide-Northeast	BHF MEMB(19)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Waterbury-Moretown	BHF MEMB(12)	Replace Bridge Membranes
Winooski	STP 2617(1)	Resurfacing
Woodford-Searsburg	NH ST 2630(1)	Resurfacing

(b) The secretary of transportation is authorized in fiscal year 2009 to obligate for the purchase of public transit vehicles up to 100 percent of all Federal Transit Administration funds made available to the state by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

(c) The secretary of transportation is authorized to request additional federal funds through any discretionary or competitive grant transportation program in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 with respect to projects in the state's approved transportation program.

#### Sec. 83b. ENHANCEMENTS

(a) Notwithstanding 19 V.S.A. §38, enhancement grants in the fiscal year 2009 program shall be awarded prior to April 30, 2009. No grants in the fiscal year 2009 program shall be made with respect to federal funds made available to the state under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

#### Sec. 83c. TOWN HIGHWAY AID PAYMENTS

(a) For the purpose of retaining adequate flexibility to react to the expected forecast downgrade on April 24, 2009, the town highway aid payments to towns scheduled to take place on April 15, 2009 shall be reduced by 50 percent, with the balance to be paid to towns before the end of fiscal year 2009 to the extent possible without impacting the transportation stabilization reserve.

(b) The general assembly and the administration recognize that the expected revenue forecast downgrade for fiscal year 2009 and 2010 may result in the lower appropriations for town highway programs than those currently proposed in H.438 for fiscal year 2010. Any increase to town highway programs will need to be reviewed in the context of available revenue.

Sec. 83d. Sec. 51(d) of No. 164 of the acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(d) ~~Any funding not needed to maintain existing services shall remain in the capital program.~~ To the extent the funding provided in this section is not

needed to maintain existing services, the agency is authorized to make grants of the unneeded funds to cover unanticipated shortfalls in the funding of elder and persons with disabilities (E&D) program services and critical medical care transportation services incurred by transit agencies with grant agreements to provide such services.

Sec. 83e. Sec. 16 of No. 164 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 16. Town Highway Class 2 Roadway

The following modifications are made to the town highway class 2 roadway program:

<u>FY09</u>	<u>As Proposed</u>		<u>As Amended</u>		<u>Change</u>
Other	5,748,750	<del>6,448,750</del>	5,748,750	<del>700,000</del>	0
Total	5,748,750	<del>6,448,750</del>	5,748,750	<del>700,000</del>	0
Sources of funds					
State	5,748,750	<del>6,448,750</del>	5,748,750	<del>700,000</del>	0
Federal	0		0		0
Local	0		0		0
Total	5,748,750	<del>6,448,750</del>	5,748,750	<del>700,000</del>	0

Sec. 83f. Sec. 17 of No. 164 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 17. Town Highway Structures

The following modifications are made to the town highway structures program:

<u>FY09</u>	<u>As Proposed</u>		<u>As Amended</u>		<u>Change</u>
Other	3,494,500	<del>3,833,500</del>	3,494,500	<del>339,000</del>	0
Total	3,494,500	<del>3,833,500</del>	3,494,500	<del>339,000</del>	0
Sources of funds					
State	3,494,500	<del>3,833,500</del>	3,404,500	<del>339,000</del>	0
Federal	0		0		0
Local	0		0		0
Total	3,494,500	<del>3,833,500</del>	3,494,500	<del>339,000</del>	0

Sec. 84. Sec. 5.009 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 5.009. Finance and management – financial operations (Sec. 2.005, #1115001000)

(a) Pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 307(e), financial management fund charges not to exceed ~~\$5,853,981~~ \$6,042,587, plus the costs of fiscal year 2009 salary increases bargained as part of the state/VSEA agreement, are hereby approved. Of this amount, \$1,305,490, plus the costs of fiscal year 2009 salary increases bargained as part of the state/VSEA agreement, will be used to

support the HCM system that is operated by the department of human resources technical services division.

Sec. 85. Sec. 5.110 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is added to read:

Sec. 5.110. Criminal justice training council (Sec. 2.122. #2170010000)

(a) The establishment of one (1) classified position – Domestic Violence Trainer – is authorized in fiscal year 2009. This position shall be transferred and converted from existing vacant positions in the executive branch of state government.

Sec. 86. 16 V.S.A. § 2856(a) is amended to read:

(a) An active member of the Vermont army national guard or the air national guard may be eligible for an interest-free loan in an academic year for financial assistance to pay for tuition and fees for courses taken at a Vermont colleges, university, ~~or~~ regional technical center or other programs approved pursuant to policies adopted in accordance with subsection (f) of this section. Academic year awards may be up to the in-state tuition rate at the University of Vermont for that year. ~~Traditional airmen may receive academic year awards up to \$9,500.00 per year.~~

Sec. 87. 16 V.S.A. § 2179 is amended to read:

#### § 2179. NONAPPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN STATUTES

Except as expressly provided in this chapter, the corporation, its officers and employees shall not be governed by: (1) chapter 9 of Title 3, dealing with administrative departments; (2) chapter 13 of Title 3, dealing with classification of state personnel; (3) chapter 16 of Title 3, dealing with state employees retirement system except as may be otherwise agreed by the board of trustees of the system and the board of trustees of the corporation with respect to those officers and employees of the corporation transferred to the corporation from the state institutions replaced by the corporation; (4) chapter 55 of this title, dealing with the state teachers retirement system except as may be otherwise agreed by the board of trustees of the system and the board of trustees of the corporation with respect to those officers and employees of the corporation transferred to the corporation from the state institutions replaced by the corporation; (5) chapter 7 of Title 32, dealing with public moneys; (6) chapters 3 and 5 of this title, dealing with the state board of education and the commissioner of education; (7) chapter 49 of Title 29, dealing with supplies, duties of commissioner of buildings and general services as to purchases of material, supplies or equipment except upon request of the corporation; ~~or~~ (8) chapter 5 of Title 29, dealing with the department of buildings and general

services, except that any contracts awarded for the construction of buildings by the corporation shall continue to be subject to the provisions of 29 V.S.A.

§ 161(b); or (9) subsection 342(d) of Title 21, dealing with required written employee authorization before an employer may pay wages through electronic funds transfer or other direct deposit systems to a checking, savings, or other deposit account maintained by the employee within or outside the state.

Sec. 88. Sec. 5.005(d) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(d) The secretary of administration is directed to reduce ~~travel~~ budgets throughout the executive branch of state government, thereby reducing operating expense, including travel, appropriations by \$998,627 in general funds and \$222,724 in Global Commitment funds. This shall be accomplished through a combination of general fund reductions and direct applications to the general fund from alternative fund reductions. The secretary shall provide an update to the joint fiscal committee in November 2008 on these reductions.

Sec. 89. Sec. 6(b)(1) of No. 206 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(1) The allocation by department and section from the fiscal year ~~2008~~ 2009 pay act appropriation and the appropriations for pay act needs of this act and any other offsets to meet pay act needs;

Sec. 90. REPEAL

(a) Secs. 21 and 28(2) of No. 164 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008) (transfers from the transportation fund to the central garage fund) are repealed.

Sec. 91. Sec. 5.600(a) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(a) Of this appropriation, ~~\$5,657,375~~ \$2,959,855 is appropriated from the transportation equipment replacement account within the central garage fund for the purchase of equipment as authorized in 19 V.S.A. § 13(b).

Sec. 92. REPEAL

(a) Sec. 406(c) of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007 (sunset on \$5,000 grant review threshold) is repealed.

Sec. 93. 32 V.S.A. § 305a(c) is amended to read:

(c) The January estimates shall include estimated caseloads and estimated per member per month expenditures for the current and next succeeding fiscal years for each Medicaid enrollment group as defined by the agency and the joint fiscal office for state health care assistance programs or premium assistance programs supported by the state health care resources and Global Commitment funds, for VermontRx, and for the programs under the Choices for Care Medicaid Section 1115 waiver. For VPharm, the January estimates

shall include estimated caseloads and estimated per-member per-month expenditures for the current and next succeeding fiscal years by income category. The January estimates shall include the expenditures for the current and next succeeding fiscal years for the Medicare Part D phased-down state contribution payment and for the disproportionate share hospital payments. In July, the administration and the joint fiscal office shall make a report to the emergency board on the most recently ended fiscal year for all Medicaid and Medicaid related programs including caseload and expenditure information for each Medicaid eligibility group. Based on this report, the emergency board may adopt revised estimates for the current and next succeeding fiscal year.

Sec. 94. Sec. 5.112(b) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(b) The secretary of state is authorized to spend, in addition to its appropriation in this ~~act~~ section, up to \$450,000 for the purpose of conducting the 2008 primary and general elections, and it is the intent of the general assembly to provide an additional appropriation in this amount in the fiscal year 2009 budget adjustment act if funding is not available through Sec. 5.803 of this act.

Sec. 95. Sec. 26(a) of No. 174 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(a) The amount of ~~\$883,000.00~~ \$500,000 from the victims' compensation fund created by 13 V.S.A. § 5359 ~~shall be available~~ is appropriated in FY 2009 for the center for crime victim services for the Vermont network against domestic and sexual violence. This amount shall be used to fund domestic violence prevention programs and services in order to break the generational cycle of domestic violence and to support the victims of domestic and sexual violence. Additional expenditures may be authorized pursuant to 32 V.S.A.

§ 511 if the revenues collected in fiscal year 2009 from the \$10 increase authorized by Sec. 20 of No. 174 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008) applied to the assessment in 13 V.S.A., § 7282(a)(8)(B), and from the \$20 authorized by Sec. 21 of No. 174 of 2008 applied to the fee in 32 V.S.A. § 1712(1), exceed the \$500,000 appropriation.

Sec. 96. 32 V.S.A. § 308c is amended to read:

§ 308c. GENERAL FUND AND TRANSPORTATION FUND SURPLUS RESERVES

(a) There is hereby created within the general fund a general fund surplus reserve. After satisfying the requirements of section 308 of this title, and after other reserve requirements have been met, any remaining unreserved and undesignated end of fiscal year general fund surplus not to exceed one percent of the appropriations from the general fund for the prior fiscal year shall be

reserved in the general fund surplus reserve. Monies from this reserve shall be available for appropriation by the general assembly.

(b) There is hereby created within the transportation fund a transportation fund surplus reserve. After satisfying the requirements of section 308a of this title, and after other reserve requirements have been met, any remaining unreserved and undesignated end of fiscal year transportation fund surplus shall be reserved in the transportation fund surplus reserve. Monies from this reserve shall be available for appropriation by the general assembly.

~~(c) The general fund surplus reserve created in subsection (a) of this section shall supersede and replace the general fund surplus reserve established in Sec. 277(5) of No. 147 of the Acts of the 1997 Adj. Sess. (1998), as amended by Sec. 88 of No. 1 of the Acts of 1999.~~

Sec. 97. 32 V.S.A. § 308d is amended to read:

§ 308d. REVENUE SHORTFALL RESERVE; CREATION AND PURPOSE

(a) It is the purpose of this section to create a revenue shortfall reserve to be used in times of economic or fiscal stress.

(b) There is hereby created a revenue shortfall reserve administered by the commissioner of finance and management. Any budgetary basis unreserved and undesignated general fund surplus ~~in excess of one percent~~ occurring at the close of a fiscal year after the general fund budget stabilization reserve established by ~~Sec. section~~ 308 of this title has been brought to its authorized level and after any deposits to the general fund surplus reserve established by subsection 308c(a) of this title, and any additional amounts as may be authorized by the general assembly, shall be reserved in the revenue shortfall reserve created by this section.

(c) In any fiscal year, if the general assembly determines there are insufficient revenues to fund expenditures for the operation of state government at a level the general assembly finds prudent and required, it may specifically appropriate the use of the revenue shortfall reserve to compensate for a reduction of revenues or fund such needs as the general assembly may determine.

(d) Determination of the amount of the revenue shortfall reserve shall be made by the commissioner of finance and management ~~with the approval of~~ and reported to the legislative joint fiscal committee at its first meeting following September 1 of each year.

Sec. 98. Sec. 23(e) of No. 203 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(e) The sum of \$100,000.00 is appropriated from the general fund to the UVM College of Medicine in fiscal year 2009 to support the Vermont academic

~~detailing program, provided that such appropriation shall expire upon collection of the first dollar of the manufacturer fee established in section 2004 of Title 33 and all funds remaining from this appropriation shall be redeposited in the general fund.~~

Sec. 99. 30 V.S.A. § 7052 is amended to read:

§ 7052. VERMONT ENHANCED 911 BOARD

\* \* \*

(b) The board shall consist of nine members: one county law enforcement officer elected by the membership of the Vermont state sheriff's association; one municipal law enforcement officer elected by the chiefs of police association of Vermont; one official of a municipality ~~not currently receiving 911 service~~; a firefighter; an emergency medical services provider; a department of public safety representative; and three members of the public. Board members shall be appointed by the governor to three-year terms, except that the governor shall stagger initial appointments so that the terms of no more than four members expire during a calendar year. In appointing board members, the governor shall give due consideration to the different geographical regions of the state, and the need for balance between rural and urban areas. Board members shall serve at the pleasure of the governor.

\* \* \*

Sec. 100. 32 V.S.A. § 464 is amended to read:

§ 464. ITEMIZED STATEMENTS AND RECEIPTS REQUIRED

When required by the commissioner of finance and management and before payment therefor is made by the state, all claimants for compensation for services rendered or expense incurred for the state shall furnish the commissioner of finance and management itemized statements in such form as the commissioner of finance and management may from time to time prescribe and shall be verified by written declarations or, if specifically authorized by the commissioner of finance and management, by electronic signature as defined at 9 V.S.A. § 271(9) that they are made under the pains and penalties of perjury, and a person who willfully makes a false statement shall be guilty of perjury and be punished accordingly.

Sec. 101. Sec. 5.005(k) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

~~(k) The secretary of administration is directed to initiate a program by September 30, 2008 which requires all state employees to receive paperless notification of their direct deposit payroll advice. The secretary and representatives of the Vermont state employees' association are encouraged to meet to determine the most expeditious and efficient means of implementing this~~

section Beginning in fiscal year 2009, all persons who are paid through the state payroll system must be paid by direct deposit and receive electronic notification of pay information unless excused for good cause by the commissioner of finance and management or designee, or in the legislative and judicial branches, the presiding officers or the chief justice of the supreme court or their designees. Their decisions on excusal shall be final.

Sec. 101a. STATE EMPLOYEE POSITIONS; CURRENT COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

The general assembly urges the administration and the Vermont State Employees' Association to explore options for achieving savings for fiscal year 2010, including a limited reopener of the current collective bargaining agreement as soon as possible. The general assembly also urges the administration to wait until the completion of the fiscal year 2010 budget process before implementing further layoffs, reductions in force, or the elimination of state employee positions or programs.

Sec. 102. OFFICE OF VERMONT HEALTH ACCESS; DEPUTY DIRECTOR

(a) An exempt position – deputy director for health care reform – is authorized in the office of Vermont health access in fiscal year 2009. This position shall be transferred and converted from existing positions in the executive branch.

Sec. 103. Sec. 2(c) of No. 71 of the Acts of 2007 as amended by Sec. 5.903 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is further amended to read:

(c) After submission of the application, the agency shall determine if the applicant meets full eligibility requirements. Beginning October 1, ~~2009~~ 2011, if the individual is found eligible for the Vermont health access plan, the agency shall, subject to approval from the center for Medicare and Medicaid services, provide payment for any services received by the individual beginning with the date the application was received by the agency.

Sec. 103a. GLOBAL COMMITMENT WAIVER AMENDMENT

(a) Upon passage of this act, the secretary of the agency of human services or designee shall seek a Global Commitment to Health Section 1115 waiver amendment from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services to:

(1) include the Catamount Health Assistance program under subchapter 3A of Chapter 19 of Title 33 for individuals with incomes above 200 percent of the federal poverty level (FPL) up to 300 percent of FPL in the premium amount paid to the office of Vermont health access under Global Commitment;

(2) include the employer-sponsored premium assistance program under section 1974 of Title 33 for individuals with incomes above 200 percent of the federal poverty level (FPL) up to 300 percent of FPL in the premium amount paid to the office of Vermont health access under Global Commitment;

(3) include the entire VPharm program described in subchapter 8 of Chapter 19 of Title 33, including individuals with incomes up to 225 percent of FPL and the cost-sharing benefits described in section 2073 of Title 33 in the premium amount paid to the office of Vermont health access under Global Commitment; and

(4) modify the definition of “uninsured” to:

(A) add the loss of insurance due to domestic violence as an exclusion from the 12-month waiting period as required by Sec. 22 of No. 174 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008); and

(B) reduce the waiting period from 12 months to six months as provided for in Sec. 5 of No. 203 of the Acts of the 2007 Adj. Sess. (2008).

Sec. 103b. TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF 2008 PREMIUM INCREASES; GLOBAL COMMITMENT TO HEALTH

(a) The general assembly finds that the state should maximize the federal economic stimulus money available for Medicaid provided in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5, by complying with the maintenance of eligibility requirements in section 5001(f). It is the intent of this section to comply with Section 5001(f) for the duration of the recession adjustment period as defined in Section 5001(h)(3) of Public Law 111-5, which ends December 31, 2010, by reverting to the premiums due on June 15, 2008 for individuals with incomes less than or equal to 200% of the federal poverty level (FPL) receiving Catamount Health Premium Assistance, individuals with incomes less than or equal to 200% of FPL receiving employer-sponsored insurance premium assistance, and individuals with incomes no greater than 175% of FPL enrolled in VPharm and VermontRx. By reinstating the premiums for programs included in Global Commitment to Health no later than July 1, 2009, the state will remain eligible for the full amount of stimulus funds available for Medicaid and Medicaid-waiver programs.

(b)(1) Notwithstanding the premium amounts listed in sections 1974(j)(2)(A) and (B), 1984(c)(1)(A) and (B), 2073(d)(2), and 2074(c) of Title 33, the agency of human services shall reinstate premiums to the amounts due on June 15, 2008 for :

(A) individuals with incomes less than or equal to 200% of FPL receiving Catamount Health Premium Assistance;

(B) individuals with incomes less than or equal to 200% of FPL receiving employer-sponsored insurance premium assistance; and

(C) individuals with incomes no greater than 175% of FPL in VPharm and VermontRx.

(2) The agency shall maintain the premium amounts established in subdivision (1) of this subsection through December 31, 2010. Notwithstanding 33 V.S.A. §1984(b), individuals with incomes less than or equal to 200% of FPL receiving Catamount Health Premium Assistance shall not have the premiums indexed until January 1, 2011.

(3) Only if required by the Centers on Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) as a condition of receiving the federal stimulus funds, the agency may reimburse individuals described in subdivision (1) of this subsection for the increase in premiums paid prior to the time of suspension.

(c)(1) Immediately upon passage through December 31, 2010, this section of the Act shall supersede any agency rules establishing premium amounts above the amounts due on June 15, 2008 from the individuals described in subsection (b) of this section. The agency shall issue policy guidance to clarify that there is a temporary suspension of increases in premium amounts through December 31, 2010 and indicate the appropriate premium amounts for affected individuals.

(2) At its discretion, the agency may adopt emergency rules as provided for in section 844 of Title 3 to reinstate the premium amounts to amounts due on June 15, 2008, and also may adopt emergency rules to raise the premium amounts to the amounts indicated in statute effective January 1, 2011. The general assembly deems the temporary suspension of premium increases to meet the public health, safety, or welfare requirement in subsection 844(a) of Title 3.

Sec. 104. NO. 80 OF THE ACTS OF 2007; DELAYED IMPLEMENTATION OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of No. 80 of the Acts of 2007 and No. 89 of the Acts of 2007 (Adj. Sess.), the secretary of human services may delay collection of the manufacturer fee established in 33 V.S.A. § 2004 pending a final decision by the U.S. District Court in the pending lawsuit captioned PhRMA v. Sorrell, Docket No. 1:07-cv-00220. Any decision by the secretary to delay collection shall not affect the obligation of a pharmaceutical manufacturer or labeler to pay the required fee, once collection begins, for

each calendar year beginning with 2007. Pharmaceutical manufacturers and labelers shall not be required to pay interest on the fee amounts for any period of time before the secretary begins collection of the fee.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of No. 80 of the Acts of 2007 and No. 89 of the Acts of 2007 (Adj. Sess.), the secretary of human services, the director of the office of Vermont health access, and the commissioner of health may delay implementation of the following statutory provisions until the secretary begins collection of the manufacturer fee as described in subsection (a) of this section and the funds are appropriated :

(1) 18 V.S.A. § 4622 (evidence-based education program; generic drug voucher program) and the related requirements in Sec. 15 (generic drug pilot program) of No. 80 of the Acts of 2007 and Sec. 15a (generic drug voucher pilot; report) of No. 80 of the Acts of 2007; and

(2) 33 V.S.A. § 2004a (evidence-based education and advertising fund).

Sec. 104a. 26 V.S.A. § 2032(g) is amended to read:

(g)(1) The board may develop procedures to permit it to oversee, at no more than three locations and for no more than two years each in duration, pilot experiments for remote pharmacies. In addition, the board may develop a pilot experiment, for no more than two years in duration, to use telepharmacy to dispense prescriptions from secure automatic dispensing units at locations in Vermont recognized as a covered entity under Section 340B of the Public Health Service Act.

(2) On December 1 of each year, the board shall report to the house committee on health care and senate ~~committees~~ committee on ~~government operations~~ health and welfare its findings with regard to pilot experiments initiated in the previous calendar year. If the board determines that the pilot experiments should be extended statewide, the board shall include in its final report proposed rules governing remote pharmacy and telepharmacy practice.

Sec. 105. REACH AHEAD IMPLEMENTATION STATUS REPORT

(a) No later than February 1, 2010, the department for children and families shall provide a status report on the Reach Ahead post-employment program to the house committees on appropriations and on human services and the senate committees on appropriations and on health and welfare. The status report shall include:

(1) information by month on caseloads, spending, and cost estimates, including:

(A) actual caseload data and trends since implementation;

(B) actual spending for the program; and

(C) a revised cost estimate for maintaining the program based on actual caseload and the take-up rate for the program;

(2) an analysis of improved employment stability and child well-being of families in Reach Ahead, including:

(A) the impact of food assistance in providing additional financial resources to the family;

(B) the number of families in Reach Ahead who are employed as of December 31, 2009 and the length of time each family was employed; and

(C) an estimate of the reduction in the number of individuals who return to the Reach Up program after participating in Reach Ahead and an estimate of the resulting savings to the Reach Up program;

(3) the impact on the state's work participation rate in federal fiscal years 2009 and 2010, including the impact on avoiding federal fiscal sanctions.

#### Sec. 106. REACH AHEAD SUNSET

(a) 33 V.S.A. chapter 12 (Reach Ahead) shall expire on June 30, 2010, and sections of chapters 10 and 11 of Title 33 shall be amended to strike references to the Reach Ahead program.

Sec. 106a. Sec. 26 of No. 30 of the Acts of 2007, as amended by Sec. 5.902 of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008, is further amended to read:

#### Sec. 26. EFFECTIVE DATES; IMPLEMENTATION

\* \* \*

(b) The amendments to 33 V.S.A. chapter 11 contained in Secs. 2-13 (Reach Up), 14 (solely state-funded programs), and 16 (Reach Up transitions) of this act shall take effect immediately when the rule changes necessary to implement the sections become final, but no later than April 1, 2008. Until the time that the rule modifications are final, the Reach Up program shall operate under current law. Any provisions in these sections relating to Reach Ahead shall take effect ~~on April 1, 2009~~ as provided for in subsection (d) of this section.

\* \* \*

(d) Reach First established in Sec. 1 of this act shall be implemented no later than April 1, 2008. Reach Ahead established in Sec. 18 shall be implemented as soon as possible and no later than July 1, 2009 for families, who leave Reach Up or the Postsecondary Education Program on or after ~~April 1, 2009~~ the actual implementation date, as provided for in 33 V.S.A. § 1203(1).

Subject to appropriation, Reach Ahead shall be implemented for all other families as provided for in 33 V.S.A. § 1203 no later than ~~July 1, 2009~~ October 1, 2010.

\* \* \*

Sec. 107. HOME WEATHERIZATION TRUST FUND; HOMELESSNESS

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of chapter 25 (home weatherization assistance program) of Title 33 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, in fiscal year 2009 the agency of human services may use up to \$250,000 of state funds from the home weatherization assistance trust fund for the purpose of reducing homelessness. Funds unspent for this purpose in fiscal year 2009 may be carried forward into fiscal year 2010 and spent for the same purpose.

Sec. 108. 33 V.S.A. § 2604(a) is amended to read:

(a) Household income eligibility requirements. The secretary, by rule, shall establish household income and asset eligibility requirements of beneficiaries in the seasonal fuel assistance program including the income and assets of all residents of the household.

(1) The income eligibility requirements shall require that households have a net household income no greater than 125 percent of the federal poverty level in order to be potentially eligible for benefits. Net income shall be derived by making the following deductions from gross income: 20 percent of household members' gross earned income; 100 percent of federal or state earned income credits received by household members; dependent care expenses that are within an allowable maximum, paid by a household member, and necessary to support a household member's employment or training for employment, according to criteria established by the secretary by rule; child support or alimony payments made by a household member on behalf of a nonhousehold member that meet criteria established by the secretary by rule; ~~\$150.00~~ \$250.00 for each household member who is 60 years of age or older or disabled according to criteria established by the secretary by rule; any deductions or exclusions required by federal law or regulations; and any other deduction or exclusion established by the secretary by rule.

(2) In order to be eligible, a household shall have net household assets no greater than ~~\$5,000.00, or \$10,000.00~~ one member of the household is 60 years of age or older. The secretary shall establish exclusions from the asset limit by rule.

Sec. 109. 33 V.S.A. § 2603 is amended to read:

§ 2603. HOME HEATING FUEL ASSISTANCE ~~TRUST~~ FUND

(a) There is created in the state treasury a fund to be known as the home heating fuel assistance ~~trust fund to be expended by the director in accordance with this chapter and other federal laws and rules adopted pursuant thereto.~~

(b) The fund shall ~~be composed of~~ consist of the receipts from any taxes dedicated to the fund, and such other state funds as may be appropriated to it by the general assembly, ~~including funds from the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP).~~ Funds from the home heating fuel assistance fund and the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) shall be expended by the director in accordance with this chapter and other federal laws and rules adopted pursuant thereto.

(c) All balances in the home heating fuel assistance fund at the end of any fiscal year shall ~~be carried forward and remain part of the fund. Interest earned by the fund shall be deposited into the fund. Disbursements from the fund shall be made by the state treasurer on warrants drawn by the commissioner of finance and management~~ remain in the fund for future disbursements.

(d) The secretary may spend, in anticipation of federal receipts into the home heating fuel assistance ~~trust~~ fund established under this section, a sum no greater than 75 percent of the federal block grant funds allocated to Vermont for the current federal fiscal year under the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), for the purpose of permitting preseason purchases of fuel and other cost-effective purchasing practices authorized by subsection 2602(c) of this title, in accordance with rules adopted by the secretary.

Sec. 110. Sec. 5.224(f) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is added to read:

(f) In fiscal year 2009, the secretary of administration may upon recommendation of commissioner of corrections transfer unexpended funds between the respective appropriations for correctional services and for correctional services – out-of-state beds. At least three days prior to any such transfer being made, the secretary shall report the intended transfer to the joint fiscal office and shall report any completed transfers to the joint fiscal committee at its next scheduled meeting.

Sec. 111. VERMONT COMMISSION ON NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE; POSITIONS

(a) The exempt positions in the Vermont Commission on National and Community Service shall be transferred to the agency of human services.

Sec. 112. GLOBAL COMMITMENT APPROPRIATIONS; TRANSFER; REPORT

(a) In order to facilitate the end-of-year closeout for fiscal year 2009, the secretary of the agency of human services, with approval from the secretary of administration, may make transfers among the appropriations authorized for Medicaid and Medicaid-waiver program expenses, including Global Commitment appropriations outside of the agency of human services. At least three business days prior to any transfer, the agency shall submit to the joint fiscal office a proposal of transfers to be made pursuant to this section. A final report on all transfers made under this section shall be made to the joint fiscal committee for review at the September 2009 meeting. The purpose of this section is to provide the agency with limited authority to modify the appropriations to comply with the terms and conditions of the Global Commitment for Health waiver approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services under Section 1115 of the Social Security Act.

Sec. 113. Sec. 5.206(c) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is added to read:

(c) The agency of human services secretary's office – Global Commitment appropriation (Section 2.202) shall be reduced by \$813,000 in general funds and by \$1,187,000 federal funds and the office of Vermont health access – Medicaid program – long-term care waiver (Section 2.208) shall be increased by the same amounts to accomplish the intent of using \$2,000,000 of Global Commitment funds specified in Section 5.206(b)(2)(E).

Sec. 114. Sec. 5.202(b)(6) of No. 192 of the Acts of 2008 is added to read:

(6) Notwithstanding 16 V.S.A. § 2959a, any additional federal funds received as a result of an enhanced FMAP that are associated with the certified expenditures specified in subdivisions (1) through (5) of this subsection shall be retained in the Global Commitment fund and shall not be transferred to the certifying entity.

Sec. 115. 32 V.S.A. § 5932 is amended to read:

#### § 5932. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) “Claimant agency” means any unit of state government, including agencies, departments, boards, commissions, authorities or public corporations, including the Vermont student assistance corporation and a collection agency under contract with the court administrator pursuant to 4 V.S.A. § 1109(d) or 13 V.S.A. § 7171. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the department of taxes shall not be considered a claimant agency and shall not be subject to the limitations contained in this chapter when it applies a refund to the outstanding Vermont state tax liability of a taxpayer, including a taxpayer's liability for interest, penalties and fees.

\* \* \*

Sec. 116. 32 V.S.A. § 5941 is amended to read:

§ 5941. PROCEDURE FOR SETOFF OF COURT JUDGMENTS

\* \* \*

(e) The court administrator may contract with one or more collection agencies to serve as a claimant agency on behalf of a court for purposes of this subchapter.

Sec. 117. 13 V.S.A. § 7171 is amended to read:

§ 7171. COLLECTION BY COMPLAINT, INFORMATION, OR INDICTMENT

\* \* \*

(b) The court administrator is authorized to contract with private collection agencies for collection of penalties, fines, surcharges, court costs, and any other assessment authorized by law incurred or imposed by statute on persons who ~~have failed fail~~ fail to pay, at or after reasonable notification of the debt, and the risk that the debt may be time of judgment, after notice that failure to pay the debt will result in the debt being referred to a collection agency and that the debtor will be liable for the collection agency's fee. The court administrator may agree to pay collection agencies a fee based on a fixed rate for services rendered or a percentage of the amount actually collected by such agencies and remitted to the state. The debtor shall be liable for the collection agency's fee, in addition to the judgment amount. The collection agency shall deduct its fee from the collected amount and remit the balance to the judiciary. All collection agency fees shall be governed by the contract with the court administrator and shall be clearly disclosed in all notices sent by the collection agency to the debtor.

Sec. 118. 4 V.S.A. § 271 is amended to read:

§ 271. SINGLE DISTRICT COUNTIES

(a) The counties of Addison, Bennington, Caledonia, Chittenden, Essex, Franklin, Grand Isle, Lamoille, Orange, Orleans, and Washington shall each constitute a probate district, which shall be designated by the name of the county.

(b) If a judicial position becomes vacant in the probate districts of Fair Haven, Hartford, Marlboro, Rutland, Westminster, or Windsor prior to February 1, 2011, the county containing the district with the vacant judge position shall become a single probate district county effective upon the date of the vacancy. The remaining probate judge in the county shall become the

probate judge of the single district probate court for the remainder of the current term. Upon consolidation, the judge of probate shall be paid \$59,321.00 for the Windham probate district and \$75,859.00 for the Rutland and Windsor probate districts.

Sec. 119. 32 V.S.A. § 1142 is amended to read:

§ 1142. JUDGES OF PROBATE

(a) The annual salaries of the judges of probate in the several probate districts, which shall be paid by the state in lieu of all fees or other compensation, shall be as follows:

	Annual Salary as of July 8, 2007
(1) Addison	\$59,321
(2) Bennington	<del>51,559</del> <u>59,321</u>
(3) Caledonia	59,321
(4) Chittenden	91,402
(5) Essex	28,853
(6) Fair Haven	43,594
(7) Franklin	59,321
(8) Grand Isle	28,853
(9) Hartford	59,321
(10) Lamoille	43,594
(11) <del>Manchester</del>	<del>43,594</del>
<del>(12)</del> Marlboro	51,559
<del>(13)</del> <u>(12)</u> Orange	51,559
<del>(14)</del> <u>(13)</u> Orleans	51,559
<del>(15)</del> <u>(14)</u> Rutland	75,859
<del>(16)</del> <u>(15)</u> Washington	75,859
<del>(17)</del> <u>(16)</u> Westminster	43,594
<del>(18)</del> <u>(17)</u> Windsor	51,559

(b) Judges of probate shall be paid by the state their actual and necessary expenses under the rules and regulations pertaining to classified state employees.

Sec. 120. REPEAL

(a) 4 V.S.A. § 273 (Bennington and Manchester probate districts) is repealed.

Sec. 121. TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

(a) The probate courts of the probate districts of Bennington and Manchester are consolidated as of the effective date of this act to form the probate court of the probate district of Bennington, which is deemed to be a continuation of the probate courts of the probate districts of Bennington and Manchester. The current probate judge for the probate court of the probate district of Manchester shall become the probate judge for the probate court of the probate district of Bennington. The current probate registers of the probate districts of Bennington and Manchester shall become the registers for the probate district of Bennington and shall be allowed to maintain their employment status that was in effect on January 31, 2009 until January 31, 2011, at which time the probate judge taking office February 1, 2011 shall appoint a single probate register for the district. The records of the probate courts of the probate districts of Bennington and Manchester shall become the records of the probate court of the probate district of Bennington. The newly consolidated probate court of the probate district of Bennington shall have jurisdiction over all proceedings, records, orders, decrees, judgments and other acts of the probate courts of the probate districts of Bennington and Manchester, including all pending matters and appeals. The probate court of the probate district of Bennington shall have full authority to do all acts concerning all such proceedings and other matters as if they had originated in that court. The assistant judges of Bennington County shall maintain offices for the newly formed district in the former districts which may be used by the probate court full or part time to provide access to probate services. The judge of the newly formed district with the approval of the court administrator shall establish the hours of operation and staffing for each office.

Sec. 122. 4 V.S.A. § 271 is amended to read:

§ 271. SINGLE DISTRICT COUNTIES

~~(a) The counties of Addison, Bennington, Caledonia, Chittenden, Essex, Franklin, Grand Isle, Lamoille, Orange, Orleans and Washington shall each constitute a probate district, which shall be designated by the name of the county.~~

~~(b) If a judicial position becomes vacant in the probate districts of Fair Haven, Hartford, Marlboro, Rutland, Westminster or Windsor prior to February 1, 2011, the county containing the district with the vacant judge position shall become a single probate district county effective upon the date of~~

~~the vacancy. The remaining probate judge in the county shall become the probate judge of the single district probate court for the remainder of the current term. Upon consolidation, the judge of probate shall be paid \$59,321 for the Windham probate district and \$75,859 for the Rutland and Windsor probate districts.~~

There shall be one probate district in each county, which shall be designated by the name of the county.

Sec. 123. 32 V.S.A. § 1142 is amended to read:

§ 1142. JUDGES OF PROBATE

(a) The annual salaries of the judges of probate in the several probate districts, which shall be paid by the state in lieu of all fees or other compensation, shall be as follows:

	Annual Salary as of July 8, 2007	
(1) Addison		\$59,321
(2) Bennington		59,321
(3) Caledonia		59,321
(4) Chittenden		91,402
(5) Essex		28,853
(6) <del>Fair Haven</del>		43,594
<del>(7)</del> Franklin		59,321
<del>(8)</del> <u>(7)</u> Grand Isle		28,853
<del>(9)</del> Hartford		59,321
<del>(10)</del> <u>(8)</u> Lamoille		43,594
<del>(11)</del> Marlboro		51,559
<del>(12)</del> <u>(9)</u> Orange		51,559
<del>(13)</del> <u>(10)</u> Orleans		51,559
<del>(14)</del> <u>(11)</u> Rutland		75,859
<del>(15)</del> <u>(12)</u> Washington		75,859
<del>(16)</del> <u>(13)</u> <del>Westminster</del> <u>Windham</u>	43,594	<u>59,321</u>
<del>(17)</del> <u>(14)</u> Windsor	51,559	<u>75,859</u>

(b) Judges of probate shall be paid by the state their actual and necessary expenses under the rules and regulations pertaining to classified state employees.

#### Sec. 124. REPEALS

(a) 4 V.S.A. §§ 275 (Fair Haven and Rutland probate districts), 276 (Hartford and Windsor probate districts), and 277 (Marlboro and Westminster probate districts) are repealed.

#### Sec. 125. TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

(a) On the effective date of this section, the newly consolidated probate court district within each county is deemed to be a continuation of the prior probate court districts within the county. The newly consolidated court shall have jurisdiction over all proceedings, records, orders, decrees, judgments and other acts of the probate courts of the prior probate districts within the county, including all pending matters and appeals. The records of the prior probate court districts shall become the records of the probate court of the newly consolidated probate district. The newly consolidated probate court district shall have full authority to do all acts concerning all such proceedings and other matters as if they had originated in that court. The probate judge for the newly consolidated district shall be elected on the first Tuesday of November of 2010. The current probate registers of the prior probate districts shall be allowed to maintain their employment status that was in effect on January 31, 2011 for six months, at which time the probate judge taking office February 1, 2011 shall appoint a single probate register for the district. The assistant judges of these counties shall maintain offices for the newly formed district in the former districts which may be used by the probate court full or part time to provide access to probate services. The judge of the newly formed district with the approval of the court administrator shall establish the hours of operation and staffing for each office.

#### Sec. 126. MUNICIPAL TICKET REPAYMENT REVOLVING FUND

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of 4 V.S.A. § 28(a)(2), the Town of Rutland may receive additional loans from the Municipal Ticket Repayment Revolving Fund for payments received from the Judicial Bureau between June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2004 in an amount not to exceed \$97,687.48.

#### Sec. 127. 10 V.S.A. § 1942(a) and (b) are amended to read:

(a) There is hereby established a licensing fee of one cent per gallon of motor fuel sold by a distributor or dealer or used by a user in this state, which will be assessed against every distributor, dealer or user as defined in 23 V.S.A. chapters 27 and 28, and which will be deposited into the petroleum

cleanup fund. ~~The~~ After analysis of the projected unencumbered fund balance, ~~the secretary, in consultation with the Vermont Petroleum Association and the Vermont Fuel Dealers Association, Inc. shall annually determine~~ may make a recommendation to the legislature as to whether or not to assess the one-cent licensing fee for the upcoming year. ~~If the unencumbered balance of the motor fuel account of the fund established under subsection 1941(a) of this title is equal to or greater than \$7,000,000.00, then the one-cent licensing assessment for the upcoming year shall not be assessed. If the unencumbered balance in the fund is less than \$7,000,000, then the annual fee may be assessed. The secretary shall notify all sellers assessing this fee of the status of the fee for the upcoming year.~~ This fee will be paid in the same manner, at the same time, and subject to the same restrictions or limitations as the tax on motor fuels. The fee will be collected by the commissioner of motor vehicles and deposited into the petroleum cleanup fund. This fee requirement shall terminate on April 1, 2011.

(b) There is assessed against every seller receiving more than \$10,000.00 annually for the retail sale of heating oil or kerosene, sold in this state and not used to propel a motor vehicle, a licensing fee of one-half cent per gallon of such heating oil or kerosene. This fee shall be subject to the collection, administration, and enforcement provisions of chapter 233 of Title 32, and the fees collected under this subsection by the commissioner of taxes shall be deposited into the petroleum cleanup fund. ~~The~~ After analysis of the projected unencumbered fund balance, ~~the secretary, in consultation with the Vermont Petroleum Association and the Vermont Fuel Dealers Association, Inc. shall annually determine~~ may make a recommendation to the legislature as to whether or not to assess the one-half cent licensing fee for the upcoming year. ~~If the unencumbered balance of heating fuel account of the fund established under subsection 1941(a) of this title is equal to or greater than \$3,000,000.00, then the one-half cent licensing assessment for the upcoming year shall not be assessed. If the unencumbered balance in the fund is less than \$3,000,000, then the annual fee may be assessed. The secretary shall notify all sellers assessing this fee of the status of the fee for the upcoming year.~~ This fee provision shall terminate April 1, 2011.

Sec. 128. Sec. 16 (2) of Act No. 200 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

(2) For the agricultural buffer program, to install water quality conservation buffers, and for the capital equipment assistance program established in 6 V.S.A. §4828. Up to \$225,000 shall be for the Farmers Water Shed Alliances and up to \$40,000 shall be for the Southern Vermont Nutrient Management Program for the purchase of aerators. ~~Up to \$250,000~~ \$200,000 of this appropriation shall be for the capital equipment assistance program,

provided that the state's share shall not exceed \$50,000 or 50 percent of a project.

Sec. 129. Sec. 4 of No. 206 of the Acts of 2008 is amended to read:

Sec. 4. APPROPRIATION REDUCTIONS

(a) Position reductions. The secretary of administration shall reduce fiscal year 2009 general fund appropriations in the executive branch of state government by ~~\$3,670,000.00~~ \$2,456,393.00 consistent with reductions in positions in the executive branch. In addition, the secretary of administration shall reduce fiscal year 2009 general fund appropriations in the executive branch of state government by ~~\$250,000.00~~ \$161,046.00 by not filling up to four exempt positions, not including attorneys and clerical personnel. In order to maintain direct services to Vermonters, the secretary shall give preference to reducing those positions which do not provide those direct services. The secretary shall provide a report to the house and senate committees on appropriations and government operations in ~~January~~ March 2009 that lists all appropriation reductions, transfers, and substitutions within fiscal year 2009 appropriated funds ~~that are proposed~~ to achieve the general fund savings in this subsection.

(b) ~~Reductions in contractual services and temporary positions.~~ The secretary of administration shall reduce fiscal year 2009 general fund appropriations budgeted ~~for contractual services and temporary positions~~ in the executive branch of state government by \$2,300,000.00. The secretary of administration may substitute appropriation reductions in other funds, and in fund transfers to the general fund, to achieve this amount, and may reduce Global Commitment appropriations correspondingly. The secretary shall provide a report to the house and senate committees on appropriations and government operations in ~~January~~ February 2009 that lists all appropriation reductions, transfers, and substitutions within fiscal year 2009 appropriated funds ~~that are proposed~~ to achieve the general fund savings in this subsection.

Sec. 130. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) This act shall take effect upon passage, except Sec. 75 (Medicaid chiropractic coverage) of this act shall apply retroactively beginning February 1, 2009.

(b) Sec. 87 of this act (Vermont State Colleges payment of employee wages through direct deposit) shall take effect May 1, 2009.

(c) Secs. 122, 123, 124, and 125 shall take effect on February 1, 2011.

And by renumbering all of the sections of the bill to be numerically correct (including internal references) and adjusting all of the totals to be arithmetically correct.

Susan Bartlett  
M. Jane Kitchel  
Diane B. Snelling

**Committee on the part of the Senate**

Martha Heath  
Mark Larson  
Robert G. Helm

**Committee on the part of the House**

**For Action Under Rule 52**

**J. R. H. 22**

Joint resolution honoring municipal public works employees and designating May 17 – 23 as Public Works Week in Vermont.

**(For text see House Journal April 16, 2009)**

**CONSENT CALENDAR**

**Concurrent Resolutions for Notice Under Joint Rule 16**

The following concurrent resolutions have been introduced for approval by the House and Senate and have been printed in the Senate and House Addendum to today's calendars. These will be adopted automatically unless a member requests floor consideration before the end of the session of the next legislative day. Requests for floor consideration should be communicated to the Clerk of the House or to a member of his staff.

**(For text of Resolutions, see Addendum to House and Senate Notice Calendar for Friday, April 17, 2009)**

**H.C.R. 103**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the Chelsea High School Red Devils 2009 Division IV girls' basketball championship team

**H.C.R. 104**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2009 Spaulding High School Division I Crimson Tide championship girls' basketball team

**H.C.R. 105**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the Spaulding High School students honored as Times Argus athletes of the year

**H.C.R. 106**

House concurrent resolution honoring the career accomplishments of former Spaulding High School wrestling coach William Young

**H.C.R. 107**

House concurrent resolution in memory of George Gibby of Topsham

**H.C.R. 108**

House concurrent resolution praising the bravery of Maersk Alabama Captain Richard Phillips of Underhill and congratulating the U.S. Navy SEALs and the FBI on his dramatic rescue

**H.C.R. 109**

House concurrent resolution welcoming to the state house the Commission on Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders

**H.C.R. 110**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the Champlain Valley Union High School Red Hawks 2008 Division I championship field hockey team

**H.C.R. 111**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the University of Vermont Lady Catamounts 2009 America East championship women's basketball team

**H.C.R. 112**

House concurrent resolution honoring libraries, librarians and library workers during National Library Week

**H.C.R. 113**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the winners in the second annual Jr. Iron Chef competition

**H.C.R. 114**

House concurrent resolution in memory of Mark Bennett of Brattleboro

**H.C.R. 115**

House concurrent resolution honoring the Granges of Vermont

**H.C.R. 116**

House concurrent resolution congratulating South Burlington on its designation as a Tree City U.S.A.

**H.C.R. 117**

House concurrent resolution honoring George Buzzell for his exemplary public service as Orleans County state forester

**H.C.R. 118**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2009 University of Vermont Catamount skiers on their team and individual accomplishments

**H.C.R. 119**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the Champlain Valley Union High School Redhawks 2009 Division I championship boys' ice hockey team

**S.C.R. 19**

Senate concurrent resolution honoring Joanie Binns for her accomplishments as manager of the Quimby Country resort.

**S.C.R. 20**

Senate concurrent resolution expressing appreciation of the state house staff and Buildings and General Services security patrol for the professionalism they displayed during the legislative proceedings related to civil marriage legislation.

**S.C.R. 21**

Senate concurrent resolution honoring the Vermont court diversion program on its 30th anniversary.